          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 May 11, 2006

                            Start:  1:08 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 4:55 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         LEROY COMRIE

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   James Gennaro

         18                                 Oliver Koppell

                                            John Liu

         19                                 Alan Gerson

                                            Kendall Stewart

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Jonathan Mintz

          4  Commissioner

             New York City Department of Consumer Affairs

          5

             Iris Weinshall

          6  Commissioner

             New York City Department of Transportation

          7

             James Muessig

          8  Superbike

             New York City, NY

          9

             Alfred Mimms

         10  Captain, Superbike

             New York City, NY

         11

             Lisbeth Telhamme

         12  Captain, Superbike

             New York City, NY

         13

             Kimball Hartman

         14  Superbike

             New York City, NY

         15

             Melissa Kathleen Hurlburt

         16  Superbike

             New York City NY

         17

             William Kitcher

         18  Superbike

             New York City, NY

         19

             David Pollack

         20  Executive Director

             Committee for Taxi Safety

         21  Long Island City, NY

         22  Joseph Giannetto

             Director of Business Development

         23  Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Traffic

             Long Island City, NY

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Vincent Sapone

          4  Managing Director

             League of Mutual Taxi Owners

          5  New York City, NY

          6  Doug Korman

             President

          7  Trike Taxi, Inc.

             Long Island City, NY

          8

             Dan Miner

          9  Trike Taxi, Inc.

             Long Island City, NY

         10

             Nic Alberts

         11  Partybikes

             New York City, NY

         12

             Wendy Scher

         13  Partybikes

             New York City, NY

         14

             Jonathan Geballe

         15  Peddle Pushers/Partybikes

             New York City, NY

         16

             Robert Strougo

         17  Partybikes

             New York City, NY

         18

             George Bliss

         19  President

             New York City Pedicab Owners Association

         20  New York City, NY

         21  Mitchell Kalmanson

             Kalmanson Associates

         22  Orlando, FL

         23  William Welch

             Pedicab Mechanic

         24

         25

                                                            4

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Robert Tipton

          4  Owner

             Mr. Rickshaw LLC

          5  New York City, NY

          6  Andres Arango

             Rickshaw Andy

          7  New York City, NY

          8  Peter Meitzler

             Owner

          9  Manhattan Rickshaw Company

             Brooklyn, NY

         10

             Spencer Monk

         11  Pedicab Driver

             New York City, NY

         12

             Melissa Ludwig

         13  Pedicab Driver

             New York City, NY

         14

             Gligor Tashkvich

         15  PILOTT, LLC

             New York City, NY

         16

             Kenneth Scott Kohanowski

         17  Brooklyn, NY

         18  Paul Muwanga

             New York City, NY

         19

             Donald Domite

         20  Owner

             Partybikes

         21  New York City, NY

         22  Christian Farrell

             Tour the Apple Pedicabs

         23  Brooklyn, NY

         24

         25

                                                            5

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Gregg Zukowski

          4  Owner

             Revolution Rickshaw

          5  New York City, NY

          6  Konstantinos Terczis

             Union 223

          7  Astoria, Queen, NY

          8  Prodromos Zoumis

             Astoria, Queens, NY

          9

             Craig Molino

         10  New York City, NY

         11  Shoshannah Pearlman

             New York City, NY

         12

             Steve Stollman

         13  Legal Expressions

             New York City, NY

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Somebody broke

          3  this at the last meeting.  It's not working.  Good

          4  afternoon, everyone.  We're going to start, because

          5  we have a full room, we have two Commissioners here.

          6  And we have over 30 people here that would like to

          7  testify. So in order to move expeditiously, it took

          8  me a little longer to get past the gauntlet coming

          9  into the building this afternoon.

         10                 I'm Council Member Leroy Comrie.  I'm

         11  Chair of the Committee.  Today is the second hearing

         12  that the Committee is holding on Intro. 75, which is

         13  a proposal to regulate New York City's pedicab

         14  industry.

         15                 There are approximately 240 pedicabs

         16  in New York City.  Over the past decade, pedicabs

         17  have grown from a novelty into a recognized tourist

         18  attraction, and a legitimate method of

         19  transportation in many areas of Manhattan.  Some

         20  consumers prefer pedicabs, because of their unique

         21  nature, and because they operate without creating

         22  exhaust fumes.  Their small size also enables them

         23  to weave through traffic and sometimes outpace

         24  automobiles.

         25                 However, accidents are inevitable,
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          2  given the crowded condition of the City's streets.

          3  Despite the dangers associated with unsafe

          4  operation, inadequate safety equipment, poor

          5  maintenance, and lack of insurance, pedicabs remain

          6  unregulated.

          7                 Since liability coverage is not

          8  mandatory, an estimated half of pedicabs do not

          9  carry liability insurance to protect property,

         10  passengers, pedestrians, the pedicab owner, and the

         11  pedicab operator, in case of an accident.  The City

         12  also has no way to ensure that pedicabs are safely

         13  maintained and that their operators are aware of

         14  traffic regulations.

         15                 Intro. 75 would authorize the

         16  Department of Consumer Affairs to license all

         17  pedicabs that operate within the City.  As part of

         18  this scheme, each pedicab owner would be required to

         19  obtain liability insurance, and submit the pedicabs

         20  for regular inspection.  Each pedicab operator would

         21  also be required to obtain an operator's license

         22  that would first require completion of a pedicab

         23  safety course, and an examination, to be

         24  administered by the Department of Consumer Affairs

         25  and the Department of Transportation.

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 Anyone violating a condition of

          3  either license would be subject to a fine between

          4  $250 and $1,000.  And a civil penalty of $250.

          5  Under certain circumstances, an operator would also

          6  be subject to seizure and impoundment of his or her

          7  pedicab.

          8                 The Committee is aware that the Mayor

          9  introduced his own pedicab bill at yesterday's

         10  meeting of the City Council.  The Committee expects

         11  to hear from the Administration on the differences

         12  between the Mayor's bill and Intro. 75, and

         13  anticipates working with the Administration to

         14  fashion a uniform piece of legislation.

         15                 The Committee will also hear

         16  testimony from industry representatives and other

         17  interested parties.

         18                 I want to thank everyone for coming,

         19  and I look forward to hearing your testimony.

         20  Before we begin, I need to acknowledge the bill's

         21  prime sponsor, Council Member Alan Gerson, who is

         22  joining us this afternoon.  And before we hear from

         23  Council Member Gerson, I just want to thank my

         24  Legislative Counsel, Thomas Ferrugia and Brian Sogol

         25  my Legislative Policy Analyst.  And Veronica Neal

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  from the Council's Finance staff.  And my Chief of

          3  Staff, Joshua Rivera, for all of their work that

          4  they've been, that they've undertaken regarding this

          5  bill.

          6                 And right now, I'd like us to hear

          7  from the person who has been the prime sponsor, and

          8  one of the prime persons behind the efforts to deal

          9  with this issue, Council Member Alan Gerson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         11  much Mr. Chair.  Let me just first of all thank you

         12  for your due consideration of this issue, which

         13  really is, of course, part and parcel of your

         14  outstanding, indeed, your brilliant leadership of

         15  this Committee, and on this Council.  And I thank

         16  you very, very, very much.  And I ditto your note of

         17  appreciation to your Committee's Legislative Council

         18  and Policy Analyst.  I know they put in a lot of

         19  work, and we appreciate that.

         20                 Commissioner, Mr. Chair, I will not

         21  repeat all of my remarks at the first hearing,

         22  because we do want to hear from our esteemed

         23  Commissioner and the other witnesses.  I just wanted

         24  to reiterate and underscore just a couple of points,

         25  old and new.
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          2                 The purpose of the over- arching and

          3  underlying, and fundamental purpose of this bill is

          4  to assure the safety of New Yorkers, and the sound

          5  operation of this relatively new industry, new to

          6  our City.  It is not  --  clearly, pedicabs are now

          7  a part and parcel of the New York street scene.

          8  They're part and parcel of the New York

          9  transportation network, if you will.  And part and

         10  parcel of our tourism and leisure network.  They're

         11  in other words, no longer a passing phenomenon.  And

         12  it's not up to us in government to micro- manage the

         13  development of the New York street scene, to

         14  determine for New Yorkers, or for visitors to our

         15  City, how they should get around our town.  And to

         16  determine what the developments should be allowed to

         17  go forward or not.  That should be left up to the

         18  decisions New Yorkers, and the guests of our City.

         19  Within the framework of safety and livability.  And

         20  it's up to us to, with respect to this part of our

         21  street scene, to let New Yorkers decide, but make

         22  sure that if they decide to use pedicabs, they're

         23  making a safe decision.  To make sure that when a

         24  person, again, a New Yorker or a visitor, enters

         25  into a pedicab, they can be assured that they're not
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          2  taking their lives into their own hands.  They can

          3  be assured that they have a  --  they can be assured

          4  of reaching their destination safely and soundly, to

          5  the extent feasible.

          6                 And within this framework, we need to

          7  facilitate, and make it possible for the

          8  entrepreneurs and the people who labor in this

          9  industry to pursue their trade, their business,

         10  their avocation, which ever it is.  And so,

         11  therefore, we put together a basic bill, with basic

         12  safety measures, street lights, brakes,  -- signal

         13  lights, rather.  Brakes, seat belts.  Basic safety

         14  measures. Basic insurance requirements, which would

         15  protect and nurture the industry and responsible

         16  business owners.  And basic inspection and training

         17  requirements, which would protect not only those who

         18  drive these pedicabs, those who ride in them, and

         19  the passerbyers (sic) pedestrians and vehicle

         20  passerbyers (sic) on our sidewalks and in our

         21  streets.

         22                 And that is the purpose of the

         23  Intro., and that is the reason why it is so

         24  imperative that we enact something to assure that

         25  this part of our street scene continues, but in a

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  safe way.

          3                 I do appreciate, as we all do, the

          4  attention of the Administration to this issue.  As

          5  always, we could count on our Commissioner Weinshall

          6  to be at the forefront of protecting New Yorker's

          7  safety and well being when it comes to things

          8  transportation related.  And I believe, I've not

          9  yet, Mr. Chair, finished studying the

         10  Administration's Intro., but from what I gather, it

         11  is certainly in keeping with the spirit of Intro.

         12  75, and I'm confident, Mr. Chair, with your

         13  leadership and the leadership of this Committee,

         14  that we will be able to wind up with a  --  on the

         15  same page.  And together, the Council, the

         16  Administration, City government, the industry, the

         17  users, the drivers of pedicabs, and the pedicab

         18  industry, and all those including those who are part

         19  and parcel of a very important taxi and limousine

         20  industry.  I'm sure that we can wind up on the same

         21  page, with win- win- win results that will work for

         22  all New Yorkers.

         23                 And in conclusion, Mr. Chair, I look

         24  forward to hearing the feedback from you and your

         25  Committee, and I'm confident that with your sage
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          2  direction, we will reach that win- win- win

          3  situation with our legislation.  So with that, I

          4  look forward to hearing from the witnesses.

          5                 I just finally need to apologize in

          6  advance.  I'm not going to be able to remain for the

          7  entire hearing due to previous conflicts.  However,

          8  I'm can assure all witnesses that in addition to

          9  being kept informed by our Committee and Committee

         10  Chair, my office and I will be represented

         11  throughout the duration of this entire hearing.  So

         12  I thank you all very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         14  Council Member Gerson. As I said earlier, we've been

         15  joined by two Commissioners.  Again, I want to thank

         16  you both for coming, in advance.  And I will turn

         17  the floor over to you.  We've been joined by, just

         18  for the audience's notification, Commissioner Iris

         19  Weinshall, from the Department of Transportation;

         20  and Jonathan Mintz, the now Commissioner of

         21  Department of Consumer Affairs.  And with him also,

         22  always by his side, Mr Andrew Iver (phonetic).

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Excuse me Mr.

         24  Chair. I was remiss, and maybe because she was

         25  seated in the middle, and because I deal so much
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          2  with the Department of Consumer Affairs on a range

          3  of issues, I take them so for granted.  But of

          4  course, it goes without saying that you know, I and

          5  my district and I certainly appreciate the DCA's

          6  attention and the leadership of this Commissioner

          7  and his able attorneys as well.  We've worked so

          8  closely together on other issues, I know we will on

          9  this.  Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  With

         11  that, I'll turn the floor over to the Commissioners,

         12  and --

         13                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you Council

         14  Member Gerson. I couldn't have said it all better

         15  myself, but I'll give it a try anyway.

         16                 Good afternoon Chairman Comrie and

         17  Members of the Consumer Affairs Committee.  I am

         18  Jonathan Mintz, the Commissioner of the Department

         19  of Consumer Affairs.  And I appreciate the

         20  opportunity to appear before you today, with my

         21  colleague, Transportation Commissioner Iris

         22  Weinshall, to discuss regulating pedicabs in New

         23  York City.

         24                 DCA offered testimony at the

         25  Committee's earlier hearing, conveying the
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          2  Administration's strong support for the general

          3  purpose and thrust of Intro. 75.  As promised, the

          4  Administration has proposed Intro. 331.  That bill,

          5  as Council Member Gerson indicated, builds upon the

          6  spirit and drive of the original proposal,

          7  addressing the public health, safety, and

          8  transportation issues attendant to the

          9  transportation of passengers for hire on City

         10  streets, by pedicabs.

         11                 As you know, the fledgling, tourist-

         12  friendly industry actually sought to be regulated as

         13  a means to legitimize itself and lock in best

         14  practices.  I commend the industry for its

         15  productive efforts, and for their input into these

         16  proposals.  Of course, we've also sought input from

         17  other affected parties, including those concerned

         18  about public safety issues.  I believe that the

         19  final product the Administration introduced combines

         20  important public safety requirements with a light

         21  enough regulatory touch to not unduly burden the

         22  industry.

         23                 I will now summarize the important

         24  features of the bill, as it relates to the licensing

         25  and enforcement features to be overseen by Consumer
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          2  Affairs.

          3                 Derived from 19th century technology

          4  that's been adapted to the present, human- powered

          5  pedicabs for hire first appeared on the City streets

          6  in September of 1995, when six American- made

          7  tricycle taxis, previously licensed in Honolulu and

          8  Miami Beach offered rides from pedicab stands in

          9  Lower Manhattan. A mere decade later, the industry

         10  has not only ballooned into an industry comprised of

         11  some 300 pedicabs, and about 80 pedicab businesses,

         12  but it has also expanded the geographic scope of its

         13  operations from Lower Manhattan into much of

         14  Manhattan and beyond.

         15                 The rapid growth of this industry

         16  shows its acceptance as a means for transporting

         17  passengers for hire, particularly by tourists and

         18  those who want short- distance, open air trips

         19  around the City.  Unlike other such industries that

         20  transport passengers for hire, however, the pedicab

         21  industry is currently subject to no business

         22  regulations that ensure they operate in a manner

         23  that safeguards both their passengers and the

         24  public.

         25                 Like Intro. 75, the provisions of
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          2  Intro. 331, the Administration's proposal, are

          3  designed to protect the public by plugging this gap.

          4                 The bill would do so by requiring the

          5  licensing of all businesses providing pedicab

          6  services, the licensing of pedicab drivers, and the

          7  registration of each individual pedicab, to ensure

          8  they meet established standards of safety and

          9  accountability.  This would add a new business

         10  license category to the 55 other types of licenses

         11  that the DCA currently issues.  The licensing and

         12  registration requirements ensure that both the

         13  business and the drivers of pedicabs can be held

         14  effectively accountable for operating fairly and

         15  complying with applicable safety standards and

         16  traffic rules.

         17                 Next, the bill establishes equipment

         18  and size standards pedicabs must satisfy to ensure

         19  that they can be operated safely.  It also

         20  establishes the clear standards pedicab drivers must

         21  follow, ensuring compliance with applicable traffic

         22  laws and regulations, as well as safe passenger

         23  transportation practices.

         24                 The bill mandates that each pedicab

         25  business obtain sufficient liability insurance
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          2  coverage, to protect both passengers and the public,

          3  should injuries occur.  The bill requires that each

          4  pedicab display the basis for calculating the amount

          5  proposed to be charged for an individual ride.  The

          6  bill exempts the services properly licensed pedicab

          7  drivers provide, from being general vendor services

          8  offered on a public space, to avoid imposing

          9  duplicative licensing requirements upon them.

         10                 The bill also includes a structure of

         11  penalties and enforcement procedures to enable the

         12  Department as well as the Police Department to

         13  effectively and efficiently enforce compliance with

         14  those standards.

         15                 The bill also authorizes the DCA

         16  Commissioner, in consultation with the Commissioner

         17  of Transportation, to bar pedicabs from operating in

         18  designated geographic areas or to limit the maximum

         19  number of licenses that can be issued.  These

         20  provisions create sufficient flexibility to resolve

         21  issues that may develop as the industry establishes

         22  itself.

         23                 Let me conclude by emphasizing that

         24  in crafting this legislation, we have been

         25  especially mindful to harmonize potentially
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          2  conflicting objectives and interests.  I believe

          3  this bill does that, establishing standards that

          4  protect public safety, protect consumers, and create

          5  a solid foundation for the future growth and

          6  development of this vibrant industry.

          7                 Thank you again for the opportunity

          8  to comment on this legislation.  At the conclusion

          9  of my colleague's comments, I'm certainly happy to

         10  answer your questions.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Good

         12  afternoon.  I am Iris Weinshall, Commissioner of the

         13  New York City Department of Transportation.  I am

         14  pleased to have the opportunity to be here again, to

         15  testify on the regulation of pedicabs, and I commend

         16  Chairman Comrie and Councilman Gerson, and this

         17  Committee, for continuing to make this issue a

         18  priority.

         19                 As I stated at the last hearing, I'm

         20  pleased that the Administration and Council are in

         21  basic agreement on the need to establish a

         22  regulatory framework for pedicabs.  Since the last

         23  hearing, we've been working diligently in drafting

         24  the Administration's bill, and as Commissioner Mintz

         25  noted, this bill was introduced to the Council
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          2  yesterday.  We are confident that it provides a

          3  comprehensive framework that will allow DCA to

          4  effectively license and regulate pedicabs.

          5                 The Administration's bill ensures

          6  that both the pedicab business and the individual

          7  pedicab drivers are held accountable for operating

          8  safely and complying with applicable safety

          9  standards and traffic rules.  The bill establishes

         10  size standards and lists specific safety equipment

         11  that pedicabs must posses in order to operate

         12  lawfully, such as a secondary or emergency brake

         13  system, battery- operated headlights and taillights,

         14  side- mounted rear view mirrors, and audible

         15  signaling device, seat belts, and reflectors.  The

         16  bill additionally requires that pedicab businesses

         17  obtain sufficient insurance coverage to protect

         18  passengers and the public financially for any

         19  injuries that may occur.

         20                 I would like to mention that the

         21  Administration's bill also effectively bans multi-

         22  passenger wheeled devices, better known as party

         23  bikes, from the City's streets.  These are unique

         24  devices in that they are not technically bicycles,

         25  since they have more than three wheels.  They are
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          2  typically four- wheeled devices that seat up to

          3  seven people, and are steered by one driver while

          4  the rest pedal.  These devices are frequently wider

          5  than a traffic lane, and create a great deal of

          6  public attention because of their unique

          7  construction.  Their operation alongside vehicular

          8  traffic represents competition for limited space,

          9  and poses a risk to the safe flow of traffic.  Party

         10  bikes jeopardize all users of our shared space, and

         11  have no place on our heavily utilized and congested

         12  streets.

         13                 In conclusion, I would like to state

         14  that we look forward to working collaboratively with

         15  the Council in the weeks ahead, as we put forth a

         16  pedicab regulatory scheme which will go a long way

         17  towards enhancing safety for all New Yorkers.  At

         18  this time, I would be happy, along with my

         19  colleague, to answer any questions.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you

         21  Commissioners. Council Member Gerson, I'll let you

         22  ask questions first.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, thank

         24  you.  And I'll just be very brief.  Again, I want to

         25  reiterate, I'm still studying the proposal, so in
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          2  that vein, let me just ask for clarification about a

          3  couple of points which seem to go beyond, at least

          4  at first glance, the issue of safety and industry

          5  stability.

          6                 So, for example, is there any  --  I

          7  understand, and please, again, correct me if I'm

          8  wrong, because I haven't concluded my full study  --

          9    but I understand that there is a prohibition of

         10  pedicabs from transversing parks, such as Central

         11  Park, Prospect Park.  Is that true?  And if so, what

         12  is the reason for that?  Why are we singling out

         13  those streets from any other streets?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: You are correct

         15  that the bill indicates that pedicabs would not be

         16  allowed in parks without the permission of the Parks

         17  Commissioner.  So what we do is, we leave that issue

         18  to be negotiated with the Parks Commissioner, so

         19  that they can work out the park- specific concerns

         20  that might arise.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I just know

         22  specifically, -  let me just talk about one issue.

         23  You know, the horse- drawn carriages are in the

         24  parks now.  And I know that there is an issue with

         25  the sidewalk conditions that have been created by
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          2  the hoofs and the wheels of the carriages going

          3  through.  So clearly, the Parks Department would

          4  want to look at the safety issue of the roadway in

          5  allowing these pedicabs to be on those park roads.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.  Again,

          7  I'm just asking for now, for clarification.  I'm

          8  sure  --  I mean, it struck me as over- reaching,

          9  but you're saying that it's up to the Parks

         10  Commissioner.  If the Parks Commissioner has no

         11  problems, your bill would allow, would have no

         12  restrictions.  Is that correct?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: That is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.  Now,

         15  again, is there anything in your bill with respect

         16  to rates, or posting of signage pertaining for

         17  rates, which would in any way limit or undermine the

         18  ability of a rider and driver to you know, negotiate

         19  kind of in New York fashion, in advance, you know,

         20  before starting out, the cost of the trip?  Is that

         21   --  how is that handled?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes.  It's a good

         23  question.  The --  as those of us who are familiar,

         24  even glancingly at the pedicab industry know, there

         25  are a variety of approaches that pedicab businesses
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          2  and drivers take to charging.  What we sought to do,

          3  again, I refer to sort of a light touch in my

          4  testimony, what we sought  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I like that,

          6  by the way.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: You like that?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I like the

          9  light touch.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: What we sought to

         11  do was ensure that first and foremost, consumers

         12  knew what they were going to be charged beforehand,

         13  rather than telling pedicab drivers or business what

         14  they could charge.  So what this bill does, is it

         15  requires that the means for calculating the ride be

         16  posted in writing, and visible before a consumer

         17  even gets on the ride.  In addition, consumers are

         18  to be issued receipts, so that there will be no

         19  surprises.  That was our approach.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So you don't

         21  dictate the rate, but you require the rate be posted

         22    --

         23                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: The means for cal

         24    --  We require the means  --  I'm sorry to

         25  interrupt.  But the means for calculating be posted.
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          2    And that way, we really leave it to the different

          3  businesses at this stage, to figure out what works

          4  best for them, and how to advertise that clearly to

          5  a consumer.  Again, our bottom line being not

          6  telling them how to do their business, but just to

          7  make sure the consumers know what they're going to

          8  be charged before they get on the ride.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But

         10  thereafter, there would be no flexibility for you

         11  know, someone to make an offer different, that

         12  results in a fare different than would result from

         13  the calculation posted.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I assume what

         15  you're asking is, could a consumer  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Can you

         17  bargain?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ:  --  Ever be

         19  charged by more, charge more than the sign says.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: With mutual

         21  agreement in advance.  You know, like you go in a

         22  taxi and they say, if you're going beyond the five

         23  boroughs and the outer counties, you have to

         24  negotiate the fare in advance with the driver.  If

         25  you want to go to like, Rockland County or Sullivan
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          2  County.

          3                 So I'm asking you, would your bill

          4  allow a similar arrangement, though within the City,

          5  for that type of deviation, or deviated negotiation?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes, I don't

          7  think so.  The way the bill is written, you have to

          8  articulate the means for calculating.  And I think

          9  that that allows for some flexibility, but it does

         10  not allow for surprises.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.  And

         12  then just finally, penalties, and insurance

         13  requirements.  And again, I haven't studied the

         14  specifics, but I was just wondering if you could

         15  elaborate on the basis for how you arrived at the

         16  specifics.  And were they kind of extrapolated from

         17  current requirements in the TLC industry on horse-

         18  drawn carriages?  Were they kept kind of at

         19  equivalent levels?  Is it  --  should they be less?

         20  Or should they be more?  What was your kind of

         21  philosophy for coming up with the penalty rates or

         22  the insurance requirements that the bill sets forth?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We looked at what

         24  we consider to be various other insurance

         25  requirements found throughout the regulatory
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          2  framework of the City.  We felt that $1 million for

          3  a business was the right amount.  Obviously, we can

          4  continue to work with the Committee to figure out,

          5  you know, if there's information that suggests that

          6  it's too little or too much.  Our sense was that

          7  that was the right amount.  But we look forward to

          8  any input.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: All right.

         10  Mr. Chair, I'm going to yield the floor.  And I

         11  certainly look forward to following up with you and

         12  the Committee, and the Administration. And again, I

         13  do need to apologize, but with the Committee, and my

         14  own office, I know we'll be well represented.  Thank

         15  you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Your

         17  bill, and both bills, neither one had dealt with the

         18  concept of the possibility of motorized pedicabs.

         19  Does your bill address that at all?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: This bill

         21  specifically defines pedicab as one powered by human

         22  motion.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: As on powered by

         24  human motion.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So there could be

          3  no hybrid type motion, motorized combination pedicab

          4  that would be allowable?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Not as

          6  contemplated in this version.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And your

          8  version does cover that area.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Under 20- 249b, a

         10  pedicab is defined as a bicycle as defined in the

         11  vehicle and traffic law, the device is designed and

         12  constructed to carry passengers, that is propelled

         13  by human power.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  Okay.

         15  And just to go back to the insurance piece.  Is the

         16  insurance  --  you say that in 20- 251b, you're

         17  saying that the license should be valid only for the

         18  person whose name is issued.  But does that require

         19  to the insurance of the vehicle?  Are you talking $1

         20  million per vehicle? Or is it $1 million per

         21  business.  That's what I'm trying to get at.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: It's the latter.

         23  It's $1 million per business.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Per business.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So a business

          3  could own multiple pedicabs as long as they have the

          4  $1 million.  Is there going to be a high- low number

          5  on that?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: The language of

          7  the bill doesn't have a high or low number.  It says

          8  that a business  --  it defines a business, which

          9  can encompass several pedicabs or just one  -- and

         10  it says that whatever the size of the business, they

         11  need $1 million to cover the business.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So if

         13  you're owner operated, it may not be the million

         14  dollar mark that you have to go for?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I'm sorry.  Could

         16  you repeat that?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: If you're the

         18  owner- operator, would it be the million dollar

         19  still requirement, if a person owns one pedicab?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Okay.  And

         22  had you gotten any feedback from any specific

         23  insurers?  I know from the first meeting, that there

         24  was a question on whether or not insurance was even

         25  available to be obtained for this industry.  Had you
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          2  gotten any feedback from any insurance agencies, or

          3  people in the insurance business?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We've had some

          5  general feedback. I also had the pleasure of

          6  attending a pedicab owners association meeting where

          7  only pedicab owners were allowed in the meeting.

          8  Where those who had insurance.  And the room was

          9  full, I assure you.  So we're confident that the

         10  existing market, as well as the legitimization of

         11  this industry, through a licensed, regulatory

         12  scheme, ought to have the insurance industry

         13  addressing those needs.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         15  Commissioner Weinshall, we had talked at the last

         16  meeting, about the possibility of having pedicab

         17  stands.  I don't think that's reflected in this

         18  bill. Could you --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: It's not --

         20  Mr. Chairman, I think what we would be prepared to

         21  do is you know, once this bill goes forward, and

         22  once the industry is regulated, and once we've

         23  identified parts of the City that, you know, we

         24  think the majority of the pedicabs will operate in,

         25  then we'll look at the street use, and try and

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  allocate space in those districts where we think

          3  there will be heavy use of pedicabs.  So we are not

          4  adverse to that at all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So we

          6  haven't really done the street usage, as far as a

          7  detailed assessment yet.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We have not,

          9  but we are more than willing to do it.  And in

         10  conjunction with Consumer Affairs, sort of targeting

         11  where we think the majority of these pedicabs will

         12  be operating.  As I testified to last time, we think

         13  we have an idea, but we'd also want to sit down with

         14  the association and sort of work it out with them as

         15  well.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Maybe we put

         18  them near where we're going to have some of our

         19  public toilets, so they can have rest stops.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We'll deal with

         21  that on a  -- that's a good concept though.  As an

         22  off- the- cuff concept.  When are those  --  what's

         23  the ETA on those?  I don't even know.  The time

         24  before the toilets get in the street?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, we're
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          2  just getting the contract through the FCRC, and

          3  hopefully, within, I guess 18 months to two years,

          4  we hope to have them up and operating.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  On the  --

          6    what do you think are the other major differences

          7  between your bill and our bill, Intro. 75?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, I think

          9  that this bill provides for some flexibility to

         10  address some public safety concerns, should they

         11  arise.  As the industry grows and flushes itself

         12  out.  I think that that flexibility addresses some

         13  concerns of other parties that have expressed those

         14  concerns.

         15                 We are licensing and inspecting the

         16  individual pedicabs as well.  It provides for, I

         17  think, effective enforcement. It really fleshes out

         18  our ability to enforce those regulations in a way

         19  that's consistent with a licensing scheme.  But I

         20  think you'll see that the differences are just add

         21  to the effectiveness of the other general thrust.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Mr. Chairman,

         23  if I might say that the  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Sure.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  --  That our
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          2  agency did a comparison and it's quite startling how

          3  common both bills are.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: There are

          6  more similarities than dissimilar aspects of the

          7  bill.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And your bill

          9  goes into details on how the registration and the

         10  seat belts, or the signaling device, and those

         11  specific areas.  I don't recall on the record, or

         12  reading it, how maintenance would be assessed on the

         13  vehicles.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I'm sorry, how

         15  what would be --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Maintenance, the

         17  vehicle maintenance.  Is it just during the annual

         18  inspection?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: The way the

         20  regulatory scheme would work, is we would license

         21   --  a pedicab business license would include within

         22  it, the inspection and licensing of one pedicab, and

         23  then there would be a minimal amount that would also

         24  kick in for each additional pedicab.  The bill calls

         25  for each pedicab to be inspected and medallioned
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          2  (sic) or stickered by the Consumer Affairs

          3  Department every year, where we would be checking

          4  for all of those public safety features.  In

          5  addition, Intro. 331 fleshes out enforcement agents'

          6  ability to check for the existence and working order

          7  of those safety features, even not during an

          8  inspection, but any time they're out on the road.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So then it

         10  would give you an ability to create a team that

         11  could do roadside inspections down the line.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And you

         14  mentioned that the medallions would be put on by

         15  Consumer Affairs?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: That's the way

         17  this proposal is written, that we would actually do

         18  the inspection and then we would actually affix the

         19  seal, whether that be a medallion or a sticker.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And would that

         21  include the rate cards?  Or the rate cards would be

         22  affixed by the consumer?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well again, they

         24  will not be City rate cards.  And I imagine that the

         25  businesses, at least for a while, are going to have
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          2  very different kinds of rate cards. Other than

          3  requiring some very common information, like where

          4  to call if you have a complaint, and what their

          5  license number is, they will develop their own

          6  signs.

          7                 What our inspections will ensure,

          8  both once a year and then whenever they're on the

          9  street, is that those cards are up and satisfy the

         10  minimum requirements of the bill.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  But you

         12  would come up with a standard size and location for

         13  where that would be located on the vehicle.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes, that's

         15  correct.  And we can do that through rule making.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  Whatever

         17  their rate is, it would be on a whatever, if this

         18  was determined to be the size, which is probably too

         19  small, but --

         20                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Definitely too

         21  small.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  As a bad

         23  visual, this would be the standard size for whatever

         24  that is.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MINTZ: Okay.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We would also do,

          4  as we typically do with these signs, we would talk

          5  about font size, location of the sign itself, et

          6  cetera.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  And

          8  that's to be determined by  --  solely by Consumer

          9  Affairs?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Rule making

         11  through Consumer Affairs would flesh that out.

         12  That's a public process, and obviously, we would do

         13  that in consultation with the industry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And you

         15  came up with the idea of requiring the pedicab

         16  operators to have a driver's license. Can you

         17  explain your rationale behind that?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, they're

         19  driving on the road, and the idea is, being subject

         20  to vehicle and traffic laws, that that was a really

         21  great way of piggybacking on the kinds of

         22  information that they ought to have.  It's a great

         23  way to make sure that these are individuals who

         24  should be on the road operating a vehicle in

         25  traffic.  Most of the public safety concerns exist
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          2  for a car that they do for a pedicab, when it comes

          3  to a good driver who knows the rules of the road,

          4  and who is subject to State licensing.  So our

          5  feeling was that it did double duty.  It's also a

          6  great means for getting information about  --  you

          7  know, it's easy to find out information about

          8  whether somebody has lost their State driver's

          9  license or not.  And that can be an effective

         10  enforcement and regulatory tool for the City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I'm not

         12  disagreeing, I just wanted you to kind of state that

         13  for the record.  I think that the idea of having

         14  some kind of a knowledge that the person has general

         15  traffic rules, and understands general traffic

         16  patterns is imperative.

         17                 Have we looked into the possibility

         18  of the pedicabs using bike lanes?  I know I asked

         19  that question at the last hearing.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We would not

         21  be in favor of that.  We really feel that bike lanes

         22  should clearly be for the use of bikers.  Because

         23  the speed bikes go, and you know, just the way that

         24  they operate in the street, to have multi- users, we

         25  think, would cause a safety problem, as well as it
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          2  would impede people from using those roadways for

          3  recreational bike use.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And you

          5  mentioned that the party bikes would not be

          6  applicable under this, under the law that you

          7  proposed.  We hadn't really dealt with it, as a

          8  specific issue.  And Intro. 75  --  as you know  --

          9  I don't know if you had a person that was here at

         10  the last hearing, but the party bike people talked

         11  about they were going to come out with a new vehicle

         12  that would be more within the lanes of a normal

         13  traffic.  It would fit within the lane of a normal

         14  traffic lane.  Fit within the width of a normal

         15  traffic lane.  So I think  --  would that be put up

         16  for consideration after that point?  Or would the

         17  party bike opportunity be totally  --

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We would have

         19  to see the new design of the new party bike.  I

         20  mean, what still concerns us is that you could have

         21  six or seven people on these party bikes, and you

         22  know, who is truly operating this bike?  Who is

         23  truly in charge of the bike?  But again, we would

         24  have to see the dimensions and how it operates

         25  before we would really voice and opinion one way or
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          2  the other.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I well tell

          5  you, the current iteration of party bike is

          6  something that we are adamantly opposed to.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Just another

          8  question in another vein.  The licenses for the

          9  industry.  Once your person is licensed, would they

         10  be able to transfer their license to another

         11  business owner?  And how could they do that?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: No.  Like, I

         13  believe, all of the Consumer Affairs licenses,

         14  licenses are not transferable.  You want each

         15  licensed party to have established their bonafides

         16  (sic) as a legitimate business, with all the proper

         17  paperwork.  You know, getting a new license isn't

         18  that big a deal.  I think what is unaffected is the

         19  ability of one business to sell their inventory to

         20  somebody else, but one can never sell or transfer a

         21  license.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So if they

         23  sell the inventory, then they would be able to

         24  maintain all of the  --  so the new person would

         25  have to come back and get the vehicles reinspected
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          2  and reinsured?  And do everything with Consumer

          3  Affairs again?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes.  You want to

          5  make sure that each licensee, as I say, has checked

          6  off all the boxes that ensure public accountability

          7  and public safety.  The costs that are being

          8  projected at this point, for these, are really quite

          9  minimal.  I don't expect this to be of concern to

         10  the industry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  We've been

         12  joined by Council Member John Liu, from Queens.

         13  Chair of the Transportation Committee.  And Council

         14  Member Oliver Koppell, from the Bronx. Chair of the

         15  Mental Health Committee.  I want to thank them for

         16  coming.

         17                 There was a part of your statement,

         18  Commissioner Mintz, when you talked about the

         19  ability to have a cap or the autonomy of your office

         20  to cap the amount of vehicles that would be put on

         21  the road.  That would be solely under your autonomy.

         22    Do you think that's something that should be put

         23  solely under your autonomy?  Or is that something

         24  that should be dealt with in public hearing after

         25  review?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, of course,

          3  the way it works out, is if it did  --  if the way

          4  the industry conducted itself, and if the way it

          5  grew, and if what we learned after licensing,

          6  suggested that there was a need for some sort of a

          7  cap, then the bill provides that, in consultation

          8  with the Department of Transportation, we could

          9  promulgate rules which would do that.  Is that  --

         10  so that of course, a public process.

         11                 The idea  --  the approach of this is

         12  that we leave it to experience to guide us on

         13  whether or not it's needed.  And the bill provides

         14  for that flexibility.  The public participation

         15  comes through capital rule making.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I think

         17  that with the  -  if the gas rates keep going up, we

         18  might have more pedicabs and other alternative

         19  vehicles.

         20                 Yes, I'm not doing that to get

         21  applause.  I'm just --  you know, considering that

         22  they're dealing with the whole idea of the cap, and

         23  the ability of the businesses to have an opportunity

         24  to have a full affect to impact whether or not there

         25  would be need for a cap or not.  So I think that

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  that's something that we may have to look at in the

          3  legislation, to have that flexibility, so that

          4  there's maximum public input in that review process.

          5                 Okay, I'm getting questions from

          6  left, right, and center here.  But this was a

          7  question that I was actually going to ask.  Why

          8  doesn't your bill deal with driver training, or

          9  anything dealing with driver training and

         10  assessment?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Our feeling was

         12  that the requirements to get and maintain a State

         13  driver's license was adequate.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And this is also

         15  a pretty obvious question, but clearly, we would not

         16  want pedicabs to be on sidewalks at any point in

         17  time.  And do you see any circumstances that

         18  pedicabs would be on the sidewalks?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: No.  They

         20  should not be on sidewalks.  The sidewalks are made

         21  for pedestrians.  And bicycle paths are made for

         22  bicycles.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  Okay.

         24  Your structure of penalties and enforcement

         25  procedures.  I don't recall if you had amounts
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          2  listed on there.  I know we had amounts listed on

          3  our original bill, from $250 to $1,000.  Did you

          4  deal with specific kinds or amounts of penalties?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We do.  We broke

          6  it down a little bit to indicate what the range

          7  would be for the first penalty, for a second

          8  penalty, and then for third and subsequent

          9  penalties, within a one- year period.  So rather

         10  than the $250 to $1,000 range, that range still

         11  exists in our version, but it's broken down, I

         12  believe, for a first violation, it's $250 to $500;

         13  for the second, it's between $500 and $1,000.  And

         14  then, $1,000 to $4,000 for the third.  I stand

         15  corrected.  And again, those are for multiple

         16  violations within a 12- month period.  So by

         17  breaking it down, we think we offer more information

         18  to the industry, so that they know exactly what the

         19  situation is.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And since

         21  this industry is starting to become more popular, is

         22  it possible that they would be set up at any point,

         23  an ongoing advisory panel of the industry, and

         24  people in the industry, with Consumer Affairs?  I

         25  know you've already gone to  --  you said earlier
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          2  that you attended a meeting of people that already

          3  had insurance.  So I know that there's been some

          4  good communication between the industry and

          5  yourself.  Could you see an advisory panel being set

          6  up?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, to the

          8  distress of those who work around my office, my door

          9  is always open.  So I suspect that there won't be a

         10  problem.  That having been said, I think we'll just

         11  see, as we go along, whether that would be useful.

         12  At this stage, I don't think there's been any

         13  difficulties in getting advice from, and

         14  communicating with, this industry.  But advisors are

         15  always good.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  All right.

         17  Council Member Liu has a question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Mr.

         19  Chairman, for holding this hearing promptly.  And I

         20  want to certainly thank the Administration, the

         21  Commissioners for the Department of Transportation

         22  and Consumer Affairs, for working collaboratively

         23  with us on this issue.  And for working rather

         24  quickly on this issue.  And I think what you've

         25  presented to us is actually a very good place to be.
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          2                 My questions are directed to

          3  Commissioner Mintz, which have to do with how much

          4  will the Department of Consumer Affairs actually be

          5  able to regulate pedicabs?  What we're trying to do

          6  is require that anybody providing such services in

          7  New York, actually receive a license from the

          8  Consumer Affairs Department.

          9                 But this is the kind of thing where

         10  there's a great amount of potential for unlicensed

         11  operations to continue.  And this would not be the

         12  only transportation- type service in New York City

         13  that goes on without being properly licensed.

         14                 So, to what extent will Consumer

         15  Affairs really have enough teeth to go after the

         16  unlicensed operation?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you.  It's

         18  a good question.  First of all, this bill

         19  specifically provides that both Consumer Affairs and

         20  our partners in the Police Department could seize

         21  vehicles which are unlicensed.  That, combined with

         22  the licensing requirement which will make it visible

         23  from afar, whether or not a cab is actually

         24  licensed, actually ought to make it much easier to

         25  make sure that those who are out there are licensed.
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          2    As well, drivers are required, with their license,

          3  to have their license physically visible.  And we

          4  think that that's actually part of the beauty of the

          5  license and regulatory scheme, is that you can make

          6  enforcement more effective.

          7                 And also, as I'm sure you know,

          8  pedicabs are pretty hard to miss.  So I don't think

          9  it will be difficult to know, when a pedicab drives

         10  by, either for a police officer or a Consumer

         11  Affairs officer, whether or not they're actually

         12  licensed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well that's an

         14  interesting point.  I mean, obviously, it's obvious

         15  what a pedicab looks like. But you're saying that

         16  the framework that you've come up with includes

         17  something that you can easily identify a properly

         18  licensed pedicab from far away.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LIU: Yes.  That's

         20  correct.  There will be either  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And how would you

         22  do that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: There will be  --

         24    the bill calls for a DCA affixing, every year,

         25  after we inspect each pedicab, affixing either a
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          2  medallion or a sticker, whose purpose is exactly

          3  that, to not only let consumers know that they're

          4  getting on a proper pedicab that's insured, et

          5  cetera, but also to let enforcement officers know

          6  from afar, that the pedicab that just drove by is

          7  licensed.

          8                 In addition, this proposal calls for

          9  licensing pedicab driver, requires them to wear

         10  their licenses in a visible way, so that you'll also

         11  know another key public safety component, which is

         12  whether the driver that just was pedaling by is also

         13  properly licensed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay, but  --  so

         15  you actually --  the enforcement officers, whether

         16  from Consumer Affairs or the Police Department, they

         17  actually would need to be pretty close to the

         18  pedicab itself, to determine that it's a properly

         19  licensed and authorized pedicab.  They couldn't

         20  really do it from far away. Because a sticker or a

         21  medallion on a pedicab, it's probably not that huge,

         22  or doesn't stick out that much that you can notice

         23  it from far away.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I understand your

         25  concern, but I don't actually think that will be a
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          2  problem.  The point of the way that these will be

          3  designed, and located, and affixed, is exactly for

          4  the concern that you've just expressed.  It's not

          5  just something that you want on the inside of the

          6  cab, so that a passenger knows that they're

          7  licensed, it's something that you want on the

          8  outside of the cab in a visible way, in a way that's

          9  clearly distinguishable by color, size, placement,

         10  et cetera, so that in fact, the exact opposite will

         11  be true.  It will be clear from afar whether or not

         12  they're licensed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes, but I'm just

         14  trying to figure out how it will be clear from afar.

         15    If it's just a sticker or a medallion.  Is it a

         16  huge medallion?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Enforcement

         18  officers will know exactly where to look.  For

         19  example, if all stickers are supposed to be you

         20  know, on the left rear panel, then everyone is going

         21  to know you look at the left rear panel, and do you

         22  see something that's bright orange?  Or bright blue

         23  that year?  Or bright green that year?  It really

         24   --  it works well in other industries, and that

         25  would be the guiding principle behind the way we
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          2  designed it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And of course,

          4  there would be something that's posted, just like we

          5  have in our taxi cabs, to alert the users of these

          6  pedicab services, what is required to be posted.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: That's correct.

          8  The proposal also calls for notification also to be

          9  specified by the Department of Consumer Affairs, the

         10  rule making, on the inside of the cab, that tells

         11  them that their license, that tells them where to

         12  call for any complaints, and tells them the basis

         13  for calculating the fare.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LIU: All right.  And

         15  again, I thank you for your efforts in this matter.

         16  I just want to underscore to you that this is an

         17  area that probably has  -- that truly has potential

         18  for unlicensed, illegal operations.  And to the

         19  maximum extent possible, you can make it clear, both

         20  to enforcement officers, as well as the consumer

         21  public, the people who are using these services,

         22  what is proper and licensed and legal, and what is

         23  not. It will make it better for the people who use

         24  these services.  It will make it easier for our City

         25  to keep the streets safe.  And as importantly, if
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          2  not even more importantly, it will help the pedicab

          3  operators who are in favor of this legislation, and

          4  who want to do the right thing, but do not want to

          5  have to compete against operations who are not

          6  fulfilling the requirements, and therefore,

          7  competing unfairly.  Thank you.  Thank you Mr.

          8  Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  I'm

         10  trying to be cognizant of the fact there are a lot

         11  of people here that are standing.  I just asked the

         12  Sergeant- of- Arms (sic) to check if the other

         13  meeting is over, so that we could possibly shift to

         14  the other room.  But in the mean time, Council

         15  Member Oliver Koppell has some questions.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         17  Also, I know Chairman Liu and I are going to have to

         18  leave for a few minutes, but I will come back after

         19  that, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 There's no intention, I take it, to

         21  limit the number of pedicabs at this point.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: The bill does not

         23  limit the number of pedicabs, but what it does do,

         24  Councilperson, is that it allows for the flexibility

         25  to do so in the future, should the need arise.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do you

          3  envision that the bill would allow you to set a

          4  limit?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: The version of

          6  the bill that we proposed in fact, suggests that the

          7  Commissioner of Consumer Affairs, along with the

          8  consultation of the Commissioner of Transportation,

          9  would, through rule making, address such a cap, if

         10  it became necessary.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You could set

         12  a cap?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes.  We would

         14  have the power to do so.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         16  I'm going to tell you, just  --  that I will not

         17  support a bill that allows the Department to put a

         18  cap.  If they  --  if there's a need for a cap,

         19  which I doubt, then it should be approved by this

         20  Council.  What's happened with the taxi medallions

         21  is something that I don't personally think is a

         22  great thing.  And we can discuss that further.  But

         23  I just want to make it clear to you, and I don't

         24  think you're going to be able to convince me to the

         25  contrary, that I will not support any legislation
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          2  that allows the Department to put a cap.

          3                 If a caps's needed in the future, for

          4  whatever reason, I doubt it, but if it is, we can

          5  consider it, or whoever is here, sitting in these

          6  seats.

          7                 Another thing, I think John Liu

          8  raised a good point, Council Member Liu, with

          9  respect to identifying, and I would  -- and while I

         10  just sort of indicated I didn't like the yellow cab

         11  system, I do like the fact that they're yellow.  And

         12  I would suggest that you might want to have the

         13  licensed pedicabs bear a distinctive color, what

         14  that should be, I don't know.  If you like the

         15  Yankees, maybe blue.  Or if you like the Mets, maybe

         16  orange and blue.  I don't know.  But you might think

         17  of a distinctive color as a way of identifying the

         18  licensed pedicabs, which, you know, you don't need

         19  to respond to it.  It's a suggestion.  Maybe, yes,

         20  fuscia.

         21                 I'm sympathetic to your suggestion

         22  about banning the party bikes.  Because I don't

         23  think that the City streets. Especially in Midtown,

         24  are appropriate for that kind of recreation. On the

         25  other hand, it is kind of an interesting
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          2  recreational device.  People enjoy it and so on.  I

          3  was wondering if there's any place  --  have you

          4  thought about any place in the City where one could

          5  have those party bikes?  Could use those party

          6  bikes?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, they're

          8  rather large, and they're rather  --  I don't know.

          9  They take up a lot of space. And you know, parks are

         10  meant for people to you know, bicycle and walk, and

         11  you know, as you know, we  --  as Councilman Liu

         12  knows, we've limited the amount of time that cars

         13  can use our parks, because we're trying to open it

         14  up to recreational use.  I mean, we would have to

         15  give it some thought, and I would have to really  --

         16  I think Commissioner Mintz and I would have to have

         17  some consultation with the Parks Commissioner.

         18                 You know, I don't think they're used,

         19  quite frankly, Councilman Koppell, for recreational

         20  use.  They are party bikes. And you know, we have

         21  seen, over the last few months, you know, large

         22  groups of people get on them, celebrating some

         23  occasion.  So they're not really used for

         24  recreational use.  They're used more for party

         25  terms.  So we would have to, I think, think about
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          2  where they would be appropriate.  I know they

          3  wouldn't be appropriate on bike lanes, from my

          4  perspective, in the park.  I don't know where they

          5  would really be suitable.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And you hate

          7  to stop something that looks like a lot of fun, to

          8  be honest with you.  But I happen to agree with you

          9  that I've seen them in Times Square area.  I'm often

         10  in that area, and I don't think they're appropriate

         11  on the streets.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: A lot of

         13  things look like fun, but they're not very safe.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's true

         15  too.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

         17  by Council Member Jim Gennaro.  Thank you.  Council

         18  Member Liu, did you have another question?  We're

         19  going finish the questioning of the Commissioners,

         20  then we'll take a quick intermission and move into

         21  the other room.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Mr.

         23  Chairman.  Just a quick follow up on the so- called

         24  party bikes.  I know there are different

         25  manufacturers.  There's only one company that calls
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          2  it a party bike, right.  The other companies call it

          3  something different.  But regardless of what they're

          4  called, do these devices serve any kind of

          5  transportation purpose?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I mean,

          7  clearly, they get you from point A to point B.  They

          8  do go in a forward motion.  Yes, I mean, you know,

          9  other than walking or taking a motorized vehicle,

         10  they are going to get you someplace.  But I think

         11  they're used for special occasions.  I don't think

         12  five or six people would get together and say, oh,

         13  let's go down to City Hall for a hearing.  So you

         14  know, I think that they're of a party- type nature,

         15  you know, to signify a special occasion.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Sure.  And I

         17  would agree with that assessment.  It doesn't seem

         18  like these so- called party bike devices serve a

         19  real transportation purpose.  So probably, we need

         20  to keep our street space reserved for things that

         21  are of a transportation nature.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, the

         23  things you and I have talked about for a long time,

         24  I mean, we have a lot of need for more space for

         25  trucks and cars and bicycles, and people who just
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          2  plain want to walk in our streets, so there is a

          3  demand for our space.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: On the other

          5  hand, in the parks, these devices also pose a little

          6  bit of a problem, because when you have six or seven

          7  people pedaling, you can assume that the speeds that

          8  are generated by these devices can get rather high.

          9  So we're not talking about a bicycle that is going

         10  ten miles per hour on average, or maybe even 20 or

         11  25 miles per hour if you're pedaling furiously.  But

         12  if you have six or seven people who are pedaling at

         13  the same time, the amount of leverage that's created

         14  can generate a very high speed that is probably

         15  inappropriate for use even in our public parks.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Also, not to

         17  mention, both in Prospect Park and Central Park,

         18  there are hills.  Some of them are, you know, quite

         19  large in nature.  And I agree with you.  As those

         20  party bikes would be coming down those hills, they

         21  would generate a lot of speed.  And I don't know

         22  about the stability.  I really don't know how

         23  they're constructed, so I don't know about the

         24  stability, if they came down those hills at a large

         25  speed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: This clearly is

          3  something that I think we all need to look carefully

          4  at.  The party bikes, six or seven people pedaling,

          5  combined with gravitational forces, could -  you

          6  know, we don't want the party to get crashed.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We'll leave that

          9  unanswered. We'll see.  Commissioner Mintz, does

         10  your office have the ability to ramp up its

         11  resources to do all the inspections, and annual

         12  inspections?  And I would humbly suggest that you

         13  stagger it, so it's not all at the same time of

         14  year.  You know, I know we've had this discussion

         15  regarding other issue, especially with all the

         16  inspections coming in at one time, I would humbly

         17  suggest that you stagger them so, just like as when

         18  you have your  --  so that they're not all coming in

         19  at the first of January.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you. I

         21  appreciate that sentiment, and share it.  And I

         22  think that we can work that out, and we will do that

         23  in consultation with the other deadlines for exactly

         24  that reason.

         25                 In terms of our resources, our
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          2  analysis suggests that we should be fine.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I have to

          4  kind of echo Council Member Koppell's idea about the

          5  caps, and the source of making the decision on that.

          6  That's something that I think that we're going to

          7  work on, to make sure that there's maximum public

          8  input.

          9                 With that being said, I want to thank

         10  you both for your attention to this matter.  Oh, I'm

         11  sorry.  Council Member Gennaro has a question.

         12  Forgive me.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Oh sure.

         14  Thank you Mr. Chairman.  And pardon me for being

         15  late.  And it's my understanding that based on

         16  talking to staff here, that this question really

         17  hasn't been asked as of yet.  But I'm concerned

         18  about the you know, inherent safety of pedicabs, and

         19  why is it  --  how can I phrase this?  Does the

         20  Department of Transportation think that this is a

         21  safe enough mode of transport to exist in New York

         22  City, and does not place people in you know,

         23  unnecessary danger?  And if it believes that, which

         24  presumably it does, why and how does it believe

         25  that?

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, it  --

          3  we do believe it could be a safer mode of

          4  transportation, which is why we're suggesting the

          5  type of things that we're suggesting.  And that's

          6  why we're not outlawing pedicabs in the City of New

          7  York.  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Have you

          9  given that serious consideration?  To outlawing

         10  them?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Outlawing

         12  them?  No.  We have not.  What our view is, is that

         13  it is a  --  it could be a safer mode of

         14  transportation.  It's a fun way of getting around.

         15  We are advocates of any mode of transportation that

         16  doesn't add to the pollution in the City of New

         17  York.  But we want to put safeguards.  We want to

         18  make sure that the consumer is safeguarded, that the

         19  driver is operating in a safe mode.  Because these

         20  pedicabs are operating on a street where there are

         21  other people sharing that space with them.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: So not only

         24  can they bring harm to themselves and their

         25  passengers, but they could clearly bring harm to
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          2  other people using the street.

          3                 So we are in favor of pedicabs.

          4  We're not opposed to them, which is why the

          5  Administration's bill is one of regulation, and not

          6  banning them altogether.

          7                 On the other hand, we are not in

          8  favor of these party bikes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Oh yes, I'm

         10  not even talking about those.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  But you

         12  know, pedicabs are something that we clearly can see

         13  sharing the space in the City of New York.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Has the

         15  Department endeavored to look at accident records,

         16  and you know, what kind of research has it done on

         17  the inherent safety of these pedicabs?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We have done

         19  some research, and I don't have the data with me.

         20  And we used the data that's collected by the Police

         21  Department, so I just don't have that data with me.

         22  And we'd be happy to get back to your office with

         23  that information.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.  Thank

         25  you.  Thank you.  I would just like to state for the
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          2  record, Mr. Chairman, that I have just, you know,

          3  inherent concerns about the safety of this mode of

          4  transport, and whether or not it should be allowed

          5  on New York City streets at all.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We did ask for

          7  the data, I think, at the last hearing, so I'm sure

          8  you're going to get back to us as quickly as

          9  possible.

         10                 In the interim, I want to thank you

         11  both for your diligence to this matter.  I'm sure

         12  that over the next few weeks, we can have some

         13  resolution.  As the other members have said,

         14  including Council Member Gerson, the bill is a very

         15  good step, I think, and we're very close to having

         16  some resolution to this.  And I want to thank you

         17  for your time and effort.  And for the time and

         18  effort of all your staffs.

         19                 In order to accommodate everybody,

         20  and allow everybody to sit down, we're going to

         21  recess and go right into the other room.

         22                 A short recess was taken.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I want to start

         24  as quickly as possible.  I wanted everybody to be

         25  comfortable, because I didn't like the idea of
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          2  anybody standing.  But we do have forty people that

          3  would like to testify.  There is another meeting

          4  scheduled today, so we're going to have to move

          5  through this as quickly as possible, so we don't

          6  have to shift back.

          7            We will allow though, for the sake of

          8  fairness, Mr. James Muessig, Mr. Alfred Mimms, and

          9  Elizabeth Telhamme to come and testify at this

         10  particular time.  Are the other two people here?

         11  Alfred Mimms.  And Elizabeth Telhamme.  And they're

         12  representing Superbike, so since they have their

         13  livelihood at stake, we'll allow them a little bit

         14  more time.

         15                 Is everybody ready?  You got to press

         16  the button. It's counter intuitive.  When the light

         17  is off, the mike is on.

         18                 MR. MUESSIG: I see.  Al and Liz took

         19  the break to go the restroom, and I'm sure they'll

         20  be back soon.  If you could maybe reshuffle them

         21  into the order.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sure by the

         23  time you're finished, they'll be back.

         24                 MR. MUESSIG: I thank you for inviting

         25  me, but I did honor the request of your Deputy, to
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          2  still limit my comments.  So I don't think I'll take

          3  quite that long.  But thank you.

          4                 I have some prepared statements, and

          5  then I'd be happy to take questions from the

          6  Committee.

          7                 Good afternoon.  My name is James

          8  Muessig.  I operate four conference bikes in New

          9  York City, known as Superbikes.  Partybike is one

         10  company's name for the conference bike, which is

         11  manufactured in Hanover, Germany, and for sale here

         12  in New York City at Hammacher and Schlemmer.  Just

         13  because they're both colas, doesn't mean Pepsi is

         14  Coke.

         15                 On February 28, the Commissioner of

         16  the Department of Transportation stated that she was

         17  horrified when she first say a party bike, and

         18  thought it should be banned.  The Commissioner added

         19  that it was wider than a lane of traffic, and gets

         20  too much attention.

         21            The Committee asked the Commissioner of

         22  Transportation how many of these bikes were in New

         23  York.  DOT did not know.  The Committee asked how

         24  many 311 complaints there were about these bikes.

         25  DOT did not know.  DOT failed to offer any data on
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          2  injuries, hospital visits, or fatalities involving

          3  these bikes, most likely because none exist that we

          4  at Superbike are aware of.

          5                 DOT did not provide any recorded

          6  statistics detailing adverse traffic flow in Times

          7  Square by comparing conference bike free Times

          8  Square traffic flow data with traffic flow data when

          9  conference bikes are being used in Times Square.

         10  DOT decided to ban the conference bike before doing

         11  any objective analysis of the matter.

         12                 Conference bikes are generally

         13  operated in Times Square after dark, and in the

         14  daytime, on Saturdays and Sundays. Conference bikes

         15  are used at a time of day after Times Square has

         16  transitioned from a business center for

         17  international media conglomerates into an area the

         18  City created to serve tourists.

         19                 Yet, the Commissioner reached the

         20  conclusion that for the safety of New York City

         21  residents, that the conference bike, and any current

         22  or future bike that has more than two people

         23  cooperatively pedaling, must be banned from the

         24  entirety of New York City.

         25                 The size of the wheel base, 72
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          2  inches, six feet, is not wider than a lane of

          3  traffic.  Yet this misinformation has been repeated

          4  in the memorandum of support from the Mayor's Office

          5  and in the Commissioner's testimony again today.

          6                 Furthermore, Superbike, in a printed

          7  presentation to this Committee, which was personally

          8  handed by me to the Commissioner of DOT, offered a

          9  compromise.  If a 72 inch wheel base was

         10  unacceptably wide, then we could decide a

         11  cooperatively pedaled bike that was 18 inches

         12  slimmer.  The new bike would be 54 inches wide,

         13  which is no wider than the Charleston Pedicab

         14  Company's product, which as been used for years on

         15  the streets of Manhattan, including Times Square.

         16                 The Administration's response was to

         17  draft legislation that would ban all cooperatively

         18  pedaled bicycles, regardless of width, if more than

         19  two people pedaled.  The Administration's response

         20  was to ban these cooperatively pedaled bicycles,

         21  whether being used commercially or personally.  The

         22  Administration's response was to ban these bicycles

         23  from the streets, sidewalks, bridges, tunnels, and

         24  parks of the City of New York.  The Administration's

         25  response was to demand a 16- day imprisonment for
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          2  riding a bicycle.

          3                 It appears that people cooperatively

          4  pedaling is the vital concern of the Administration,

          5  because they wish to ban more than two people from

          6  simultaneously pedaling any vehicle regardless of

          7  size, and wish to forbid more than one person from

          8  simultaneously pedaling a licensed pedicab.

          9                 The Administration wishes to ban

         10  cooperatively pedaled pedicabs, and most

         11  cooperatively pedaled cycles in existence, which the

         12  Administration refers to as multi- person pedaled

         13  devices.  However, neither in testimony, in written

         14  submission, memorandum of support nor otherwise, has

         15  the Administration explained up to this hearing, why

         16  cooperative pedaling, with the trained and

         17  supervised driver controlling the steering and

         18  brakes, is an unacceptable hazard to the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 The Memorandum in Support of the ban

         21  states that conference bikes represent competition

         22  for limited space.  A conference bike is six feet

         23  wide at its widest point, and eight feet long.

         24  Stretch Hummers that circle Times Square, with

         25  screaming passengers hanging out the sunroofs,
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          2  waving to the pedestrians and motorists, are almost

          3  40 feet long, and over seven feet wide, including

          4  mirrors.  However, DOT sees no competition for

          5  limited space from stretch Hummers, stretch

          6  Lincolns, or other limousines who slowly move their

          7  passengers in circles through Times Square for

          8  recreational enjoyment.  Any one, any one of those

          9  vehicles makes almost twice as big a footprint on

         10  the street as the entire Superbike fleet combined.

         11                 The Commissioner said at the February

         12  28th hearing, that conference bikes get "too much

         13  attention".  Too much was neither quantified nor

         14  explained.  Neither was the basis for banning from

         15  New York City things that get too much attention.

         16  By DOT's logic, the Empire State Building and the

         17  Naked Cowboy should be banned as well.  Both are two

         18  streetside New York fixtures among a myriad of

         19  others with the potential to distract motorists.

         20                 Among the distractions in Times

         21  Square are cars that hop up and down on hydraulic

         22  suspensions and cruise solely to be noticed.  Unique

         23  advertising vehicles with mounted laser holographic

         24  imagery have made appearances.  The Administration

         25  submits no data on motorized accidents involving
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          2  motorists who claim they were distracted by

          3  conference bikes.  Yet a wink, a nod, and the words,

          4   "too much attention" are used to justify a

          5  draconian ban on not just what exists, but to choke

          6  off what may be developed.

          7                 Neither DOT, DCA, or the NYPD have

          8  ever contacted me with any concerns about the

          9  operation of superbikes.  They did not do Superbike

         10  the courtesy of sending advance copies of the ban

         11  legislation that would put Superbike out of

         12  business.  They did not request that I attend this

         13  hearing. They did not notify me of this hearing's

         14  existence.  Therefore, I am forced to speculate what

         15  too much attention is code for.

         16                 I conclude that too much attention

         17  means different. What gets too much attention is

         18  different from the norm.  The conference bike looks

         19  different, therefore, it must be dangerous. In the

         20  absence of any objective information, since the

         21  conference bike looks different, it must be

         22  dangerous.  What is different is dangerous.  This is

         23  the impulse in the human brain that is the source of

         24  discrimination in our society.  I ask this Committee

         25  and the City Council to employ our shared gift for
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          2  higher reasoning to overcome our inherited yet non-

          3  productive instincts.  What is different is not, by

          4  definition, dangerous, and is often beneficial.

          5                 Furthermore, I ask this Committee and

          6  the City Council, now that you have talked the talk,

          7  now to walk the walk. After the Council has talked

          8  about the need to control the diabetes epidemic in

          9  the City, it is time to walk the walk.  Encourage

         10  our citizens to exercise by making conference bikes

         11  and bikes like it, more available, not less.  After

         12  the Council has talked about the importance of close

         13  families as the bedrock of our communities, it is

         14  time to walk the walk.  Make these shared and

         15  cherished family memories available to all the

         16  citizens of New York.  Do not forbid it.  After the

         17  Council has supported the Kyoto Protocol, now is the

         18  time to walk the walk.  When DOT speaks of traffic

         19  flow, DOT refers to motorized, fossil- fuel burning,

         20  greenhouse- gas emitting, global warming vehicles.

         21  A major tour bus operator boasted to me  -- actually

         22  just last week  --  that he could run his buses all

         23  day and night, all day and night, for less than $30

         24  per day, per bus in fuel, because of government

         25  subsidy.  He pays $.96 a gallon.  Yet when families
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          2  want to tour our City by bicycle, and not worry

          3  about losing the children, or that they may lose

          4  their balance, or just wish to enjoy cycling in New

          5  York with a trained, experienced, knowledgeable,

          6  professional operator controlling the steering and

          7  brakes, so that they can enjoy our Cityscape, DOT

          8  wants to ban them.  Walk the walk.  Tell DOT that

          9  you can't encourage tours on motorized buses but ban

         10  pedaled tours.  Families want to bicycle together.

         11                 Without the police, DOT, or DCA

         12  asking me, I voluntarily restricted Superbikes from

         13  carrying passengers up 8th Avenue, except when

         14  leaving or entering our garage.  This was to address

         15  noise complaints from residents of the Camelot

         16  Apartments. My competitor, Partybike, continues to

         17  patrol 8th Avenue, so there may be some 311

         18  complaints, I don't know about that.

         19                 Without the police asking, I

         20  restricted Superbikes from Broadway in Times Square,

         21  because of a bottleneck created by the merging of

         22  Broadway and Seventh Avenue at West 45th Street.

         23  Without the police asking, I restricted Superbikes

         24  from operating westbound on 42nd Street, between

         25  Seventh and Eighth Avenue, because the traffic often
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          2  backs up on that block.

          3                 The Schubert Organization doesn't

          4  like conference bikes in front of their theaters.

          5  They think that our bikes are not in keeping with

          6  the image they wish to project at their theaters.

          7  Without anyone asking, I restricted Superbikes from

          8  West 44th Street between Seventh and Eighth Avenue,

          9  out of respect for the Schubert Organization, which

         10  draws so many people to Times Square.  Without the

         11  police asking, I restricted Superbikes from our

         12  first day, from standing on Seventh Avenue.

         13                 One of the drawbacks of term limits

         14  is that term limits also limit the institutional

         15  memory of a body.  Many of you may still remember

         16  years ago, when double deck tour buses first

         17  appeared in Times Square.  The police complained

         18  that they were slowing traffic and competing for

         19  limited space with other traffic. DOT claimed that

         20  they were operating a shadow transportation network,

         21  under a guise of giving tours.  DCA complained that

         22  selling tours on the streets conflicted with general

         23  vending laws. Back then, the sole double deck tour

         24  company was Big Apple Tours. They ran their business

         25  in a highly irresponsible manner, and there was an

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  outcry from residents, business, police, and other

          3  government agencies.  Big Apple was shut down by the

          4  government to protect the safety of New Yorkers.

          5  However, the vehicles and the business model was not

          6  banned.  Today, Grayline and City Sights expect to

          7  sell $90 million in tickets this year to delighted

          8  visitors and a few residents of New York.  Like

          9  Superbike captains, the tour guides of these

         10  companies are great good will ambassadors for our

         11  City.  This would have never happened if a previous

         12  Council, following the advice of a former

         13  Administration, had destroyed a whole business in

         14  its infancy rather than punishing a rogue operator.

         15                 In conclusion, all conference bikes

         16  are not party bikes, and Superbikes are not party

         17  bikes.  If the behavior of Partybike, well

         18  documented in the press, has earned the ire of the

         19  Administration, then the Administration ought to

         20  punish Partybike. News reports suggest they already

         21  have.  We, at Superbike, have gone the extra mile to

         22  cooperate with residents, police, and businesses in

         23  Times Square.  Superbike has earned the right to

         24  live and grow, providing a service that New Yorkers

         25  and visitors enjoy.
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          2                 I remain ready to meet with any

          3  Council Member or with any City official to work out

          4  a compromise that addresses everyone's concerns.

          5  I'd like to thank you for your time and your wise

          6  deliberation on this matter, and point out, on the

          7  bottom of page eight of the presentation in front of

          8  you, I have pictures from conference bikes operating

          9  in Berlin, with a population of 4.2 million in their

         10  metro area; Amsterdam, 1.5 million; on the streets

         11  of Paris, largest city in Europe, metro area

         12  population, nine million.  Greater than New York.

         13  I'd also like to add that I've spoken with Erik

         14  Stroller, the creator of the conference bike, and he

         15  tells me that within the last week, they went on the

         16  streets in Philadelphia, Boston and Washington D.C.,

         17  and have been operating for over a year on the

         18  streets of Minneapolis.

         19               And my captains will come and testify.

         20  Their testimony is attached.  And I'd also like you

         21  to look at the back, on page 14, the Tribeca Film

         22  Festival, where we were invited to come with our

         23  bikes last weekend, has wrote (sic) a wonderful

         24  letter of support for Superbike, outlining their

         25  desire that these bikes not be banned.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Alright Mr.

          3  Muessig, I appreciate your coming down and making an

          4  impassioned plea to continue your business.  You

          5  could tell from the testimony of the Commissioners

          6  and actually a couple of Members that you're in

          7  trouble.

          8                 MR. MUESSIG: Well, it didn't sound

          9  good.  But I spoke with both Commissioners privately

         10  afterwards.  Commissioner Mintz said I ought to go

         11  see the Commissioner of DOT.  And the Commissioner

         12  of DOT said that within a couple of weeks, she did

         13  remember that I'd offered the compromise.  And that

         14  she would invite me for a meeting with DOT to

         15  discuss the possibilities that would address City

         16  concerns.  So a dialogue has finally been opened.

         17  But we hope that this Committee will nudge it along

         18  a little, because you do not want New York City

         19  sending a message to the rest of American  --  and

         20  America does watch what New York City does  --  that

         21  a whole bicycle should be made illegal.  That is not

         22  where we want to go.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I

         24  understand your  --

         25                 MR. MUESSIG: Oh, I'd also like to
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          2  mention that Mr. Liu was mistaken.  The bike can't

          3  go over 15 miles an hour.  It's geared, so even

          4  going downhill, it's not like seven people are going

          5  to go out and pump out 60 miles an hour.  And I'd

          6  also like to tell you that we have brought a

          7  conference bike.  It's standing outside City Hall on

          8  Broadway right now.  And I would urge the Council,

          9  give it a try before you ban it.  Because people get

         10  these weird ideas when they see the pictures.  Some

         11  people think it spins like a merry- go- round.  Just

         12  go out there.  I have a trained driver there who

         13  would be glad to take you around the block or the

         14  parking lot.  And you could experience it and

         15  understand what they're talking about before you

         16  vote on this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Well, Mr.

         18  Muessig, I appreciate your being here, and you know,

         19  I'm trying to have an open mind with this hearing,

         20  so I wanted to give you extra time to make your

         21  plea.  We do have a lot of people that want to

         22  testify. And everyone else will be under a three-

         23  minute clock, only because we need to get out of

         24  here within a certain amount of time.  I encourage

         25  you to keep doing everything you can to make a plea
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          2  for your business.  I would do want to advise you

          3  that you know, listening to my colleagues, nobody

          4  was on your side.  So you know, you got a lot of

          5  work to do.  And I would hope that you can get that

          6  done as quickly as possible, to make a full and

          7  complete case for the survival of your business.

          8                 MR. MUESSIG: Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Is Mr. Mimms and

         10  Elizabeth here at this time?  I'm going to start the

         11  clock.

         12                 All right.  Good afternoon.  When the

         13  button is off, you're on.  You both have three

         14  minutes to make your case.  Who is going to start?

         15                 MR. MIMMS: I'll start.  Good

         16  afternoon everyone.  My name is Alfred Mimms.  And

         17  I'm a Superbike Captain.  I live in East Harlem.  I

         18  was born and raised in New York.  I thought about

         19  traveling, but I haven't had much opportunity to do

         20  so, because of the situation that I live in.  I live

         21  with these people, the Superbike owners, and they

         22  were kind enough to give me job.  The job that I do

         23  for them, I really appreciate and I really enjoy,

         24  because I get to meet people from all over the

         25  world, and I get to hear about their countries.  And
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          2  it's very enlightening to me. Everyone that I've

          3  toured on my bike was very appreciative, and glad

          4  that they took the ride.  Some of them were hard to

          5  convince, but one they got on, they didn't want to

          6  get off.  They thought that it was  --  actually,

          7  they told me that it made their day.  And these

          8  people came from France, Germany, Europe, all over

          9  the world.  And they really enjoyed the Superbike.

         10                 And it's a means for me to pay my

         11  bills right now. Because right now, I'm unemployed.

         12  I also had a condition, a heart condition, clogged

         13  arteries, and I've been doing this for six months,

         14  and the doctors tell me that I'm doing quite well

         15  now, because of the exercise I get on the Superbike.

         16                 And I would really hate to see this

         17  be banned because people don't understand what it's

         18  really about.

         19                 And I don't really have much to say,

         20  I just want you all to know that it's really an

         21  opportunity to try something new, and like I said,

         22  everyone that rode on that bike really enjoyed it.

         23  And like my boss said, there's a bike outside, if

         24  you'd like to ride and see what it's about, you can.

         25
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          3                 MS. TELHAMME: Good afternoon.  My

          4  name is Lisbeth Telhammne, and I'm from Forest

          5  Hills, Queens.  I'm 18 years old, and I'm a

          6  Superbike Captain.

          7                 I'd like to say that Superbike is in

          8  no way detrimental to New York City, and if

          9  anything, it's a beneficial, productive part of our

         10  great City.  There have been claims made that our

         11  bikes are unsafe, and block up traffic.  These are

         12  completely fallacious statements.  The bikes are not

         13  as unsafe as cab drivers, or any other commuter in

         14  New York.

         15                 I for one, am a very cautious driver.

         16    Aside from protecting my own life, I'm responsible

         17  for the lives of six other people.  Not including

         18  the lives of pedestrians and other commuters.

         19  Claiming that Superbike is unsafe is insinuating

         20  that not only am I incompetent, but I am also

         21  irresponsible.  Which, I'd like to say, I'm not.

         22                 If I was any of those things, I

         23  wouldn't be in college right now, trying to earn a

         24  degree in journalism and philosophy.  And

         25  coincidentally, it's Superbike that helps me pay my
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          2  way through college.  So in a way, it's sort of a

          3  cartesian circle.

          4                 There are those who say that

          5  Superbikes block up traffic.  And if that's the

          6  case, then not only should Superbikes be made

          7  illegal, so should pedestrians, cars, trucks, buses,

          8  bikes, rollerbladers, skate boarders, and anything

          9  else that pretty much moves.  At this point, New

         10  York City is so populated that there will be traffic

         11  jams despite the presence of Superbike.

         12                 Superbike is a great tourist

         13  attraction.  And they pretty much love it.  As a

         14  matter of fact, I can't recall one passenger who has

         15  ever had anything negative to say about our bikes.

         16  I even had passengers who decided to ride the

         17  Superbike, because friends from other states told

         18  them how much fun it was.

         19                 And I personally have not gotten into

         20  any accidents or hurt anyone, while conducting the

         21  bike.  Neither have I gotten a single ticket or any

         22  violations.

         23                 Superbike is not to blame for any of

         24  the complaints. If anything, it's Partybike.  And

         25  we're not Partybike.  We're Superbike.  They are
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          2  more risque in their driving methods, and their

          3  motivation for attracting customers.  And we should

          4  not be to blame for their actions.

          5                 I for one would be losing my source

          6  of college tuition.  And Superbike is also

          7  environmentally friendly, and is a perfect job for

          8  college students, with its flexible hours, I can

          9  work right through my college schedule, with time to

         10  spare for writing papers.  So I'm a little nervous.

         11  To me, Superbiking is more than a job.  I meet many

         12  different people, and it keeps me in shape, while

         13  being around my friends, and I can make money, all

         14  at the same time.

         15                 To allow legislation making it

         16  illegal for me to operate Superbike would not only

         17  greatly reduce my chances of getting through

         18  college, but it would be upsetting my way of life.

         19  And not only would it be ruining a good time for me,

         20  but for the hundreds of tourists and locals we pick

         21  up every week.  Thank you. And like we said before,

         22  we have bikes outside right  --  we have a bike

         23  outside right now, and you really shouldn't ban it

         24  unless you try it.  Because it really is fun.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  If we
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          2  get a chance to get out of here at a reasonable

          3  time, I'll try to get on a bike.

          4                 MS. TELHAMME: I suggest you do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

          6  coming.  Next, Melissa Kathleen Hurlburt, from

          7  Superbike.  Mr. Hartman, from Superbike.  Kimball

          8  Hartman, I'm not sure, I can't read that first name.

          9  And William Kitcher, from Superbike.

         10                 In the sake of time, let's try not to

         11  be repetitive. Let's try to come up with something

         12  new.  I'm going to take the discretion to try to

         13  stop you if you're doing the same speech that we've

         14  heard already.  Only in the interest of time.

         15                 MR. HARTMAN: I think I'll go first.

         16  Hello.  My name is Kimball Patrick Hartman, a

         17  Captain for Superbike.  I am 20 years old.  I

         18  currently intern for a fashion designer as one of my

         19  goals for my future success.  Lately, after stress

         20  from multiple jobs at one time, plus the internship,

         21  it has been hard for me to provide the necessities

         22  for myself, especially because of public

         23  discrimination due to the fact that I am  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you bring the

         25  mike down so we can hear you better?
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          2                 MR. HARTMAN: Can you hear me now?

          3  I'll start here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You don't have to

          5  start again, you can keep going.

          6                 MR. HARTMAN: Okay.  Than I found

          7  Superbike.  I am now able to pay rent, which is

          8  important to me after being kicked out of my family.

          9    Anyway.  With enough for phone bills due to Metro

         10  Service.  And et cetera.  I can continue the

         11  internship with plenty of time left for myself now

         12  that I do not need to burden myself with more than

         13  two, up to three jobs.  I am here now for Superbike,

         14  and the pedicabs of New York City, because of the

         15  jobs open for people like me.  A place where I am

         16  more than accepted, respected, and comfortable.  It

         17  has encouraged to get people like me, who are

         18  unfortunately, on the streets prostituting for

         19  shelter and food.  I am here now for the continuance

         20  of Superbike.  For those who enjoy it, and

         21  especially for those who need it.  The end.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next.

         23                 MS. HURLBURT: I hate public speaking,

         24  so I'll make it short and sweet.  My name is Melissa

         25  Hurlburt.  I'm 20 years old, and live in Queens.
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          2  And I have been driving a Superbike since September

          3  of last year.  I can hardly remember before I drove

          4  the Superbike, but by far, it is the best job, in

          5  the best company I've worked for, and I've been

          6  working since I was 14.  I've had more than a dozen

          7  jobs, so I have a good contrast to compare it to.

          8                 I come from a working class family,

          9  and working is not an option for me.  It's a

         10  necessity.  I'm the first person in my family to

         11  attend college.  I'm in my third year at Hunter

         12  Community College, Hunter CUNY.  --  I am so nervous

         13    --  and the Superbike is the only job in those

         14  three years that has allowed me flexible hours for

         15  school, and enough money  --  which is important,

         16  because money is money, but I need enough to pay

         17  tuition --  to pay for school.

         18                 I worry that if the Superbikes are

         19  banned, I will not be able to attend school.  I will

         20  have to drop out, take a full- time job, and hope

         21  and pray against statistics, that I'll be able to

         22  reenlist.

         23                 In the nine months that I have worked

         24  for Superbike, I've never had an accident, a

         25  complaint, or an injured passenger. Parents
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          2  frequently thank me for how safely I drive, and how

          3  reassuring I am.  And especially for the memorable

          4  experience.

          5                 Although our competitors may attract

          6   --  Partybike --  may attract attention through

          7  reckless driving, and wrack up hundreds of tickets,

          8  I assure you that Superbike does not operate in such

          9  a manner.  If I, or my co- workers, acted in any

         10  such manner that was not cautious and courteous, my

         11  boss would not allow us on the team.

         12                 To discriminate against towards one

         13  company based on the actions of another separate

         14  company, is terribly unfair. Superbikes are a safe,

         15  enjoyable experience, when operated by mature,

         16  safety- conscious minded individuals.  It provides

         17  myself and many of my co- workers the opportunity to

         18  attend college, contribute to the tourist and local

         19  experience of New York, keep healthy with exercise,

         20  and enjoy a comfortable family- like work

         21  environment.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next.

         23                 MR. KITCHER: Hi. My name is William,

         24  and I live in the Flatbush section of Brooklyn.  And

         25  I've lived there for my whole life.  I come from a
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          2  working class family as well, and me and my sister

          3  both attend college.  She goes to Fordham, and I go

          4  to Hunter.  Because of my finance, my parents,

          5  financially is what most other people said, I kind

          6  of need to work a job, and this is like one of the

          7  only jobs I can find that the hours are good for my

          8  classes, because I can't work during the day,

          9  because I have my classes.

         10                 I was given this opportunity

         11  actually, Melissa offered me the job back in

         12  October, and I've been riding since then.  All

         13  through the Winter until now.  And before I was even

         14  put on the bike as a driver, I went through a

         15  training for a week as a passenger, knowing the

         16  rules and regulations of the street, and how to

         17  drive around.  And we can and not to do, and no

         18  stopping in crosswalks, no running red lights, and

         19  everything.  No zig- zagging between traffic, and to

         20  always yield the traffic when we're merging, and we

         21  also were taught to respect the residents of Eighth

         22  Avenue, by not carrying passengers up Eighth Avenue,

         23  when we heard it was bothering them.  So now we

         24  don't even  --  we changed our route completely for

         25  them, as well as not going down 44th Street for the
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          2  Schubert Organization.

          3                 The thing with this job is, it's

          4  given me my first sense of like responsibility,

          5  because since this job, I've opened up my first

          6  savings and checkings (sic) account, and I've been

          7  saving since then.  Even with the sense of

          8  responsibility, my parents themselves have come into

          9  Times Square to see shows, and whenever they come

         10  in, they call me and I come pick them up on the bike

         11  and drive them to like a restaurant or anything.

         12  And they love the bikes  And my dad just turned 60,

         13  and my mom's 56, so we kind of appeal to everyone

         14  else.

         15                 I've always believed that conference

         16  bikes spoke for themselves, and that there was no

         17  need to like swerve in and out of traffic to race

         18  other bikes for a more exciting ride.  Because just

         19  the experience of sitting on the bike and moving

         20  through the New York City traffic is enjoyment

         21  enough.

         22                 This job also got me real interested

         23  in the culture of New York, and more about New York.

         24    And I actually  --  this job inspired me to study

         25  for my sightseeing license, which I studied for
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          2  weeks, and passed with a Master Score.  I got 125

          3  out of 150 questions correct.

          4                 And I believe that the conference

          5  bikes are best used for tours and stuff like that,

          6  and I am currently designing like a one- hour tour

          7  including Midtown, Rockefeller Center, Grand

          8  Central, Bryant Park, the Empire State Building,

          9  Grand Central Terminal.  And I want to offer this

         10  tour to visitors on the weekends during the Summer.

         11                 The conference bikes are better for

         12  the environment than diesel tour buses.  Conference

         13  bikes are safer than bicycle tours, which drop

         14  people with no experience on the streets of New York

         15  City on bicycles.  It's better to have these tourist

         16  bicyclists being steered by a trained and

         17  experienced Superbike Captain, since Superbikes have

         18  four wheels, they don't have to worry about

         19  maintaining their balance, and you don't have to

         20  worry about them not knowing their way around.  My

         21  time is up, so I'll just thank you and --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What do you guys

         23  average a week, in salary?

         24                 MR. KITCHER: I don't have any much

         25  more to say.  I just  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No no.  What do

          3  you average a week in salary?

          4                 MR. KITCHER: In salary?  I make about

          5  a little bit more than $100 a day, so about $8- $900

          6  dollars a week.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And you too,

          8  about the same?

          9                 MR. HARTMAN: Yes, that's pretty

         10  close.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  All right.

         12    Thank you for coming down.

         13                 MR. HARTMAN: Oh, and just to remind

         14  you, we do have a bike outside, if you  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I got it.  I got

         16  it.  I got it. I got it.

         17                 MR. HARTMAN: Have fun.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next,

         19  we'll hear from David Pollack, from the Committee

         20  for Taxi Safety; Joseph Giannetto; and there's a

         21  third person.  Did you sign in Mr. Sapone?

         22                 MR. POLLACK: Good afternoon Chairman

         23  Comrie, Council Members.  My name is David Pollack,

         24  the Executive Director of the Committee for Taxi

         25  Safety, an association that represents about 2,300
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          2  medallions managed by licensed leasing agents,

          3  fleets, and thousands of men and women who drive

          4  those taxis.  Thank you for the privilege of

          5  testifying on Intro. 75, the Pedicab Intro.

          6                 I want to start by saying that I did

          7  not have time to review the Mayor's version, so this

          8  was written prior to that, and please understand

          9  that.  I'm honored to share the table with Vincent

         10  Sapone, of LONTO, and Joe Giannetto, representing

         11  the Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Trade.

         12                 There are safety issues that need to

         13  be addressed, regarding open air pedicabs.

         14                 We applaud the inclusion of pedicab

         15  safety training course and examination for

         16  prospective licensees.  In addition, we urge the

         17  City to require an annual drug test, as all other

         18  transportation licensees are required to take.  When

         19  riding in a yellow cab, passengers are assured their

         20  driver was tested for drugs, fingerprinted, and that

         21  the vehicle has insurance.

         22                 Passengers who ride in taxis are in

         23  an inclosed space, protected by steel, have seat

         24  belts available, and an auto industry committed to

         25  passenger safety.  Crash testing provides data for
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          2  continued structural safety improvements for taxis.Passengers

          3  are exposed to greater harm in pedicabs in the event

          4  of an accident.  There is no roll bar or structural

          5  protection in the event of a crash.  Therefore, the

          6  liability insurance needs to be higher, to protect

          7  against that risk.

          8            At this point, I'm going to interrupt my

          9  testimony.  I just would like a clarification.

         10  Inside, someone in the Mayor's bill, mentioned $1

         11  million liability.  And I was just curious to know,

         12  is that per bike?  Is that per event?  Or is that if

         13  you own a garage of bikes, you can have $1 million,

         14  and cover 500 pedicabs.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I did ask that

         16  question.  He said per business.

         17                 MR. POLLACK: Okay.  Thank you.

         18                 MR. GIANNETTO: Can I interject on

         19  that just for a second?  I also had the same

         20  concern, so I asked Mr. Alper, or Mr. Eiler, from

         21  DCA for a clarification, and so it is per business,

         22  as you said, but also, since pedicabs are defined as

         23  bicycles, if they were to get into a collision with

         24  a motor vehicle, then under the State's no fault

         25  scenario, then it's the motor vehicle's policy that
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          2  would cover the injuries, any resulting injuries,

          3  from that, including the passengers of the pedicab.

          4  And if there was no collision with a motor vehicle,

          5  and for what ever reason, maybe a pedicab overturned

          6  and there was an injury to a passenger, it's my

          7  understanding, based on the conversation I had with

          8  Mr. Eiler, that then there would be a claim of

          9  liability against the driver.  So I don't know how

         10  this business policy, as stated in the bill would

         11  cover, as we know it, in the motor vehicle industry.

         12

         13                 MR. POLLACK: Thank you for that

         14  point.  And I'll take a few seconds off your

         15  testimony, so I can continue.

         16                 The Department of Motor Vehicles and

         17  the Taxi and Limousine Commission monitors every

         18  taxi driver's record.  Unsafe drivers are suspended

         19  or evoked.  You cannot allow the hiring or continued

         20  operation of unsafe operators of pedicabs.  A duty

         21  is owed to the public for safer operators, a safer

         22  pedicab, and a requirement for higher insurance

         23  limits.

         24                 To sum up, I have a lot of quotes for

         25    --  I have a few quotes from different
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          2  periodicals, Business Week, USA today. You can

          3  review those at your own.  But there is something I

          4  would like you to see.  At the very back of my

          5  testimony, I provided two pieces of paper, Appendix

          6  E and Appendix D, the London Pedicab Operators

          7  Association Code of Practice for Pedicab Operators;

          8  and Code of Conduct for Pedicab Drivers.  And

          9  briefly, some of the things they include is one

         10  million pounds worth of liability insurance for

         11  every one event.  No soliciting of fares.  No

         12  smoking or using mobile phones while operating a

         13  pedicab.  A maximum of three passenger.

         14  Documentation of all accidents.  Zero tolerance for

         15  the use of drinks or drugs.  Operational records to

         16  identify which operator was using which pedicab.

         17  And a number of other items worth considering.

         18  Thank you very much for your time and allowing me to

         19  testify.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         21                 MR. SAPONE: Good afternoon Mr.

         22  Chairman, and Members of the Committee.  My name is

         23  Vincent Sapone.  I'm the Managing Director of the

         24  League of Mutual Taxi Owners in Manhattan.  I

         25  represent about 3,500 owner- drivers, the guys that
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          2  buy the medallions, drive it themselves.  We are not

          3  a fleet.

          4                 You know, I heard a lot of testimony

          5  here, and to me, it feels like  --  you know, my

          6  guys pay $300, $350 for a medallion.  They got close

          7  to $4,000 a month note.  I would say more than that.

          8    What am I saying?  I'll say maybe a $5,000 a

          9  month, okay?  They have insurance.  They got

         10  repairs.  They got to get a new car every five

         11  years.  And these are the same people that drive  --

         12    they don't drive for me, they drive for

         13  themselves, that years ago, were like these young

         14  fellows here.  Same.  Okay? They're talking about

         15  the octopus pedicab, by the way, and I mean, it's

         16  great.  I mean, listen, they belong on the boardwalk

         17  in Coney Island.  That's where they belong.  They

         18  belong at parks.  They belong at Yankee Stadium.

         19                 If you ever go down one of the main

         20  avenues, and you get stuck in traffic, you'll come

         21  to a point where there will be a pedicab in front of

         22  you, and then once you pass him, you'll clear, okay?

         23    I mean, we got to keep New York City moving.  They

         24  don't belong in Midtown Manhattan, number one.

         25  Number two, they're at the theater district,  --
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          2  yes, shush me all you want, they're at the theater

          3  district soliciting rides, which is illegal, when my

          4  men pull up by a theater, they're chased away by

          5  enforcement, okay?            They make as much as a

          6  guy that owns a medallion. Without paying out

          7  nothing.  Listen, I want these young kids to work.

          8  Let them get a hack license.  Let them go to

          9  McDonalds.  Let them go somewhere.

         10                 You know, it's not right what's going

         11  on.  Pretty soon, next year, we'll have rickashaws

         12  (sic) in the streets.  You know?  That's what this

         13  is coming to.  This is New York City.  They should

         14  be restricted in a certain area.  There should be

         15  stands for them, not that they're paroding (sic)

         16  around soliciting rides, because that's illegal.

         17  The only one that can cruise the streets is the

         18  yellow medallion.

         19                 You know, I feel for them.  I wanted

         20  to make a buck. But they want to cut in on something

         21  that we pay over and over for, for years and years

         22  and years, and bring in this new theory, oh, it's

         23  great for tourists, its great for that, it's great

         24  for this. That's an accident waiting to happen.

         25  Like Joe said, what about insurance?  What's going
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          2  to be if a truck runs into them?

          3                 And listen, hey listen.  You know

          4  better than I. You know, I didn't want them to

          5  suffer.  But they don't belong in the streets of

          6  Midtown Manhattan, number one.  Let them stay in the

          7  parks.  Let them go  --  if they like the job so

          8  much, and they want to help the tourists so much,

          9  let them go to Cape May somewhere, on the boardwalk.

         10    You know, let them do that, okay? Don't cut into

         11  my business, where I got families to support.  And

         12  you guys are walking in and making $100 a day.  Told

         13  you $100?  I guarantee you it's $150.  It could be

         14  $200.  Guarantee you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  Thank

         16  you  --

         17                 MR. SAPONE: They're making more money

         18  than corporate cars, and the yellow taxis.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Mr.

         20  Sadone.

         21                 MR. SADONE: Thank you. I'm sorry.  I

         22  got upset.  But I want them to make a living.  But

         23  you know, don't come in my back door, after I paid

         24  dues for 40 years, and you want to come in and take

         25  over.  That don't work with me.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I appreciate your

          3  passion Mr. Sadone, thank you.  Mr. Giannetto.

          4                 MR. GIANNETTO: Good afternoon Mr.

          5  Chair and Members and staff.  My name is Joseph

          6  Giannetto.  I'm the Director of Business Development

          7  for the Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Trade, which

          8  is a 54- year old trade association comprised of 19

          9  taxi fleet garages, with more than 2,500 yellow

         10  medallion taxis.

         11                 Now in February, the MTBOT testified

         12  before this Committee on Intro.  75, which attempts

         13  to regulate the pedicab industry, which has been

         14  allowed to proliferate at an alarming rapid pace in

         15  New York City without any restrictions or safety

         16  requirement, or consumer protections.  And we were

         17  pleased with the attempts by the City Council to do

         18  something about the problem, but we raised serious

         19  questions about the infringement on the taxicab's

         20  exclusive right to pick up street hails.

         21                 Now while this very important issue

         22  is still unresolved, having lanced at the new

         23  legislation submitted by the Department of Consumer

         24  Affairs, as well as DOT, we're pleased to see that

         25  some significant strides have been made with regard
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          2  to insurance, safety requirements, and consumer

          3  protection.  We urge the City Council and the

          4  Mayor's Office to reconcile their bills with the

          5  following suggestions:

          6                 We must protect the taxicab's

          7  exclusive right to pick up street hails.  Now

          8  pursuant to the Administrative Code, and according

          9  to the Taxi and Limousine Commission's website, for

         10  its next public auction of yellow medallion taxicabs

         11  scheduled for next month, "The holder of a medallion

         12  possesses the exclusive right to pick up passengers

         13  by street hail on the streets of New York City." The

         14  language couldn't be clearer or less ambiguous.

         15  Therefore, you can imagine how medallion owners and

         16  taxi drivers feel as evidenced by Vinnie's

         17  testimony, when pedicabs are allowed to pick up

         18  street hails.  It's just wrong.

         19                 Now while we believe that pedicabs

         20  should be limited in geographic areas, where they

         21  can operate and the hours during which they can

         22  operate, which would mirror legislation that was

         23  passed in Las Vegas, Toronto, Vancouver, and other

         24  North American cities.  There is a way that pedicabs

         25  can share the roads with taxicabs.  So we support
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          2  prearrangement or the placement of select pedicab

          3  stands in locations deemed appropriate by the City.

          4  Pedicab operators would only allowed to be pick up

          5  passengers (sic) at these stands, or through

          6  prearrangement.  But they should not be allowed to

          7  cruise the streets to pick up street hails.

          8                 Now in addition, since passengers who

          9  enter a pedicab should be assured of the same rights

         10  and protections as those who enter a taxicab, we

         11  urge the Council to implement the following

         12  regulatory changes that either mirror regulations in

         13  the taxi industry, or address issues specific to a

         14  pedicab ride:

         15                 First off, we have to outright, in

         16  clear language, outright ban motorized pedicabs.

         17  They're available now, and they could pose a serious

         18  traffic and safety risks.  We don't want the

         19  opportunity for motorized pedicabs to be introduced

         20  into the City.

         21                 We should mandate annual drug testing

         22  for all pedicab operators, just as is the case with

         23  taxicab drivers.

         24                 We should also mandate the

         25  fingerprinting and background checks on all
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          2  operators as well.  For the same reasons, and for

          3  the protection of the passengers.

          4                 We should mandate that pedicab

          5  operators carry workers compensation coverage.  This

          6  is to protect the operators of those pedicabs.

          7                 I've only got a few more points,

          8  Council Member.

          9                 We should mandate that the completion

         10  of a pedicab safety training course and a pedicab

         11  operators exam be part of the legislation.

         12                 I know Mr.  --  Council Member

         13  Koppell was adamant about this, but we recommend a

         14  cap on the number of pedicabs at a reasonable

         15  number.  For example, 200, to protect against

         16  strains on traffic and public safety.

         17                 Thank you for your time.  And we're

         18  available to answer any questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm being

         20  informed by my resources that most of the pedicab

         21  rates that are out there now are actually higher

         22  than most cab  --  the cab rates that are out there.

         23    Most of the drivers are charging higher rates for

         24  their pick ups and drop offs than right now you guys

         25  are.  So it's more of a  --  I don't think they're
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          2  in direct competition for rate service, it's more of

          3  a competition for  --  I think it's more dealing

          4  with cherry picking, telling you the truth.  So

          5  that's something that we to really take a hard look

          6  at.

          7                 The issues on whether or not pedicabs

          8  or motorized vehicles  --  in the testimony by the

          9  Administration, they did say that they're going to

         10  ban motorized pedicabs.  In their proposed

         11  legislation.  Just to inform everybody, the

         12  Administration gave us their proposal Thursday?

         13  Friday.  You know, we had prescheduled this second

         14  hearing on our proposal already, as I had told you

         15  at the last meeting, that we would have another

         16  hearing in May.  We did schedule that.  So all of us

         17  really only have had a limited time to absorb their

         18  entire proposal.

         19                 The other issue on the definition of

         20  a vehicle, is still something that we're all going

         21  to be working on, to try to deal with that.

         22  Especially in the rise of the fact that the pedicabs

         23  are not motorized, and are not really considered a

         24  vehicle in the gist of terms that are out there

         25  today.  That's something that we're going to have to

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  work on.

          3                 But I want to thank you for coming

          4  back, and I'm sure we'll be talking a lot in the

          5  next few weeks.

          6                 MR. GIANNETTO: Thank you Council

          7  Member, thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          9                 Okay, the next panel will be Doug

         10  Korman, Nic Alberts, Dan Miner.

         11                 We're going to try to keep this as

         12  succinct as possible.  And I've been pretty

         13  amenable, but --

         14                 MR. KORMAN: Ready?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

         16                 MR. KORMAN: Hi.  My name is Doug

         17  Korman.  I am the President of Trike Taxi,

         18  Incorporated.  And I am a son of this City.  My

         19  father worked for the City of New York until he died

         20  in my arms in 1965.  He instilled in me a sense of

         21  responsibility, socially, civically, and morally.

         22  And that is why I formed the New York Pedicab

         23  Drivers Association.  The purpose was to, in a

         24  climate of no regulation of pedicabs, I saw there

         25  was an importance for us to have boundaries as to

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  how we operate, and that we have proper practices

          3  that are established for the industry.

          4                 I am also involved in the manufacture

          5  of electric pedicabs.  I am the only manufacturer of

          6  pedicabs in New York City, and my frames are built

          7  by Workmen's Cycle, and Workmen's Cycle is the

          8  oldest manufacturer of bicycle in the United States,

          9  since 1898.

         10                 I am offended by what I see going on

         11  here by the taxi lobby, and what is being written

         12  into the Mayor's proposed bill.  I am a person with

         13  a disability.  I have been driving my electric-

         14  assisted pedicab, which is protected under federal

         15  law, signed by President Bush on the 27th of

         16  November in 2002.  I do not operate my vehicles with

         17  anything more than a one- horsepower motor to assist

         18  me.  I have been driving for years, my pedicab, over

         19  the 59th Street Bridge bike lane without an

         20  incident.  I have been driving pedicabs in this City

         21  for nine years now, without incident, without an

         22  accident.  During that time, I've been hospitalized

         23  with injury inside of a taxicab, with glass in my

         24  eyes.  I have seen many taxicab accidents.  I fear

         25  taxicabs, whether I'm driving my car or my pedicab.
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          2                 And I am offended that there is any

          3  restriction in the development of the alternative

          4  transportation industry in this City.  This City has

          5  a tremendous opportunity before it, to introduce

          6  other forms of transportation that are nonpolluting.

          7                 My company is a grant partner with

          8  two engineering firms that develop advanced forms of

          9  electric pedicabs that are powered by hydrogen fuel

         10  cells.  It is an offense, and it is a fraud to say

         11  that we are a threat to this lucrative taxi industry

         12  in New York, when we are in such small numbers.  We

         13  are at not even a fraction of a percent of what they

         14  are.

         15                 Our operating sphere in Times Square

         16  and the outer area of Midtown is something that is

         17  not just restricted to a nice little amusement ride

         18  for tourists.  We are transportation and we are safe

         19  transportation when we are operated safely.

         20                 I have a vehicle outside, if anybody

         21  wants to come for a ride in it, and tell me that it

         22  isn't safe.  My battery weight gives me the ability

         23  to be a stable ride on the roadway.  I cannot be

         24  overturned easily.

         25                 I am for Intro. 75.  And I am against
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          2  what the Mayor has proposed in other areas that

          3  people are going to address.

          4                 MR. MINER: Mr. Chairman, thank you.

          5  My name is Dan Miner. I'm representing three

          6  organizations, I'll be really brief. I'm with Long

          7  Island City Business Development Corporation, we're

          8  the LDC that helps businesses in Long Island City.

          9  Mr. Korman, his business is there.  MTBOT is a long-

         10  time member.  And we feel that there is great

         11  opportunities for all the members of our

         12  transportation sectors to prosper their business.

         13                 And we support regulation for

         14  necessary safety. That's great.  That's my wrap for

         15  LIC/BDC.

         16                 I'm also here on behalf of the New

         17  York City Sierra Club, and Peak Oil NYC, because

         18  there's another issue in the room, that people are

         19  not addressing, and that's that we're going into a

         20  major energy crisis, because the price of oil  --

         21  and it's increased  --  is not cyclical, it's not

         22  temporary.  It's permanent, and it's an ongoing

         23  trend, and we have to support all forms of

         24  transportation, to bring extra efficiency to their

         25  services, as I know the New York City taxi industry
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          2  is doing with hybrids, and that's very laudable.

          3  The City government is doing great things. And also,

          4  the expansion of the pedicab industry, which does

          5  not rely on petroleum- based fuel at all.

          6                 New York Times, Newsday, the

          7  Washington Post have all written editorials about

          8  the coming peak in world oil production, which

          9  leading geologists say is going to take place by

         10  2010, or before, and may have already taken place.

         11  What happens after the peak is that gasoline and oil

         12  prices permanently increase, and the fuel becomes

         13  permanently more expensive and difficult to extract.

         14    What that means is that New York City, and the

         15  entire country, and the entire world, needs to make

         16  preparations for higher energy prices to expend

         17  conservation in and efficiency, and to move towards

         18  renewable energy and fuels.

         19                 There's more information in my

         20  literature.  I'm happy to address any questions.

         21  And I guess we're done a little early, but you get

         22  the gist of it.  I strongly  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, you don't

         24  have to go all the way to three minutes, so thank

         25  you.
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          2                 MR. MINER: No doubt, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next.

          4                 MR. ALBERTS: Thank you.  Good

          5  afternoon.  Thank you Commissioner for allowing me

          6  to speak.  My name is Nic Alberts. I'm 42 years old,

          7  and I'm currently a part- time student at the

          8  College of Staten Island.  I'm taking a paralegal

          9  course, taught by Judge Porsio.

         10                 And I am in support of most of Intro.

         11  75.  I work with Don Domite, with Partybike.  And

         12  it's become clear to me that Don may have ruffled a

         13  few feathers.  And I've only been working with him

         14  for about a month or so.  I've spent about the last

         15  20 years of my life on a bicycle.  My experience

         16  with Don seems to be a little different than most

         17  other people's.  I find him to be a good employer.

         18  He cares.  I had surgery, and he took an interest in

         19  it.  And he has had people he has employed for well

         20  over a year. I find him to be a good employer.

         21                 I see my role on the partybike, yet

         22  it looks a little out there, but I do see myself as

         23  an ambassador to the City of New York.  I have  --

         24  the customers come from not all over the United

         25  States, but from all over the world.  It really
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          2  enhances the rep of the City, it doesn't diminish

          3  it.  It's unique.  Families love us.

          4                 I make a point of obeying all traffic

          5  regulations, and the directions given to me by all

          6  peace officers.  And the bike itself has been on the

          7  road since 2000, commercially.  And I haven't seen

          8  any stories, and I've been looking, as of yet,

          9  concerning accidents, fatalities.  So it does have a

         10  safety record that speaks for itself.

         11                 I do welcome the bikes being

         12  regulated and licensed, and feel the compliance with

         13  the same sort of standards that are being proposed

         14  here for the pedicabs, is more than appropriate.

         15                 Also, in this age of rising gas

         16  prices, I am baffled that it is being proposed that

         17  a nonpolluting, human- powered vehicle be banned and

         18  outlawed from the City streets of Manhattan. It

         19  seems to be no other reasons.  Mr. Muessig expressed

         20  earlier, it is a new, unique, and unusual design

         21  that seems to come right out of the pages of a

         22  Doctor Suess book.

         23                 The bike's not wider than traffic

         24  lanes.  They were designed by the manufacturer to be

         25  compliant with traffic lanes. And also, they're
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          2  significantly smaller than the horse- drawn hansom

          3  cabs, and the double- decker buses, which leave a

          4  significantly larger footprint on the City streets.

          5                 I'd be glad to provide the Council

          6  the specs from the manufacturer, in terms of the

          7  size and the speed.  As far as the speed goes, they

          8  don't  --  they're designed not to go more than 20

          9  kilometers an hour, 12 miles an hour.  You can pedal

         10  all you want, you're not going to go that fast.

         11                 And my experience with the other

         12  drivers, both Superbike and Partybike, is, I've yet

         13  to see anybody act recklessly.  We may be loud

         14  coming up to an intersection.  That's to alert

         15  people of our presence.  The last thing I want to do

         16  is hit anybody, and see a lawsuit.

         17                 And I've driven several of the bikes

         18  in our fleet. All of them have had working lights,

         19  two sets of hydraulic brakes, one hand, one foot.

         20  And reflectors.  In addition, all the pilots for

         21  Partybike have been issued reflective vests, that

         22  also have bright blinking lights.  I mean, we're

         23  highly visible to all other drivers.  This is an

         24  honest, clean business and provides a good, decent

         25  living to the pilots of conference bikes,  --  thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          4                 Mr. Korman, what were you referring

          5  to, the federal law, February 2002?

          6                 MR. KORMAN: The Congress brought

          7  forth a law that was specifically designed to enable

          8  people to have an easier time in traveling by

          9  bicycle by giving them the ability to have a one

         10  horsepower motor on that bicycle   --  a limit to

         11  one horsepower -  under pedal assist.  And that the

         12  vehicle must have the ability to pedal.  And it does

         13  not exceed 20 miles per hour.  And it was signed by

         14  President Bush.  Now, that's the Electric Bicycle

         15  and Tricycle Law, and I can submit that, a copy of

         16  that if you wish. And I am available at any time.

         17  Our company has a facility in Long Island City where

         18  we assemble our vehicles.  We assemble our vehicles

         19  to the highest safety standards.  We have three

         20  heavy- duty disc brakes on our vehicles.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I'll

         22  commit to you to coming by and taking a look.  If

         23  you can get us a copy of that bill, we'll appreciate

         24  it.

         25                 MR. KORMAN: Yes.  Certainly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 Thank you gentlemen for coming.  The

          5  next panel is Wendy Scher, from Partybike.  Robert

          6  Strougo, from Partybike.  And Jonathan Geballe.  I

          7  apologize if I mangled anybody's names previously,

          8  now, or later.

          9                 MS. SCHER: I feel in good hands in

         10  the company of my company's lawyers.  Yes.  My name

         11  is Wendy Scher. I work for Partybike.  And I live in

         12  Bushwick, Brooklyn.

         13                 So, on behalf of the conference bikes

         14  in New York City, conference bikes  --   also known

         15  as Partybikes or Superbikes, depending on which

         16  company you talk to  --  are the best thing since

         17  the theaters to hit Times Square.  Despite all the

         18  neon signs, the high- demand retail, and the

         19  varieties of street performers and special events

         20  all around, nothing consistently brings laughter and

         21  joy to its participants as much as a conference

         22  bike.  And I hear this from people all over, who

         23  have nothing to do with, from street vendors, from

         24  everything.  Everybody can see how happy people are

         25  on this.
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          2                 I have been working with Partybike

          3  for over a year, far longer than any other

          4  occupation, because nothing is more rewarding than

          5  giving people such and incredible, exhilarating

          6  experience, every day.  And I also hope that people

          7  actually are directly looking at me when I'm

          8  speaking.

          9                 Furthermore, it promotes physical

         10  activity and group bonding, is pollution- free, and

         11  is sustainable in every sense of the term.  In its

         12  two years of business here, it has not only received

         13  national attention several times, but has become an

         14  attraction that people actually seek out during

         15  their trips to New York.  Passengers in passing

         16  limos, tour buses, and cars, and even pedicabs,

         17  react with amazement and often envy when they see a

         18  loaded conference bike passing by.  While my

         19  passengers couldn't be happier anywhere else.

         20                 I have been driving about 25 hours a

         21  week for the past year, even through the Winter, and

         22  I have never had an accident.  I intend to keep it

         23  that way.  As long as a driver is properly trained

         24  and supervised, there is nothing inherently unsafe

         25  about a conference bike.  It takes a special kind of
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          2  person to drive one of these bikes, but we only need

          3  a few to enhance the quality of life of this City.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 MR. GEBALLE:  Hello.  My name is

          6  Jonathan Geballe. And good afternoon, and thank you

          7  for allowing me to speak.

          8                 I am an attorney, who has represented

          9  various pedaled vehicle operators and designers in

         10  New York City, including pedicabs and the seven-

         11  seat vehicles called conference bikes, or party

         12  bikes.  At this moment, I'm counsel to Pedal

         13  Pushers, Limited, which is Don Domite's company.

         14  And I've also assisted the New York City Pedicab

         15  Association to incorporate as a not- for profit and

         16  trade association.

         17                 I'm not going to read through my

         18  prepared statement, because it would be too long.

         19  Instead, what I want to speak about is a little bit

         20  more off- the- cuff, and just in reaction to the new

         21  bill that has been introduced, I gather, within the

         22  last couple of days.  When I received the  --  I'm

         23  speaking here about party bikes.  When I received

         24  the introductory remarks by Karen Miora (phonetic),

         25  the portion at the bottom, which I've highlighted in
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          2  yellow, just threw me back.  To reiterate pretty

          3  much what James Muessig was saying previously, it's

          4  full of so much misinformation and bad information.

          5  It seems that the portion of this law which seeks to

          6  ban party bikes is simply something arbitrary.  It's

          7  not anything based on facts, or based on information

          8  that any of us could possibly verify.  For example,

          9  you've heard already, several times, about how party

         10  bikes are not as wide or wider than a lane of

         11  traffic.  They are six feet wide.  Six feet is not

         12  ten feet. It's not 11 feet, which is what a lane of

         13  traffic is designated as on our streets.  It's half

         14  a lane of traffic.

         15                 So that kind of information is being

         16   --  that misinformation is being used off- the-

         17  cuff to support, in some strange way, the banning of

         18  party bikes.  It's very unfortunate, and it would

         19  result in a serious crimp in the possible designs

         20  that could be available to all sorts of pedaled

         21  vehicles.  I don't want to repeat again the health

         22  value of the vehicles, the great opportunities for

         23  alternative means of transportation, which would be

         24  a great benefit to the City.  Perhaps another way of

         25  saying it is that freezing the allowable models to
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          2  just one type, is such a narrowing restriction that

          3  should be implemented only if no other form of

          4  regulation could provide the safety and the

          5  structure for party bikes to operate.

          6                 We're not there yet.  We haven't

          7  explored the kinds of regulations that would be

          8  proper, or appropriate for party bikes.  So to start

          9  off by simply banning them, and banning them based

         10  on bad information, would be, I think, a terrible

         11  mistake.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next.

         13                 MR. STROUGO: Thank you for affording

         14  me the opportunity to speaking here.  My name is

         15  Robert Strougo.  And I know Don Domite for a while,

         16  and I recently became involved in trying to help him

         17  in this plight that he's finding himself in.

         18                 He's been operating on the streets

         19  for three years, and I thought it was quite an

         20  accomplishment that New York, with its reputation as

         21  being so difficult in so many ways, that he was able

         22  to somehow operate in Times Square.  And I counseled

         23  him many, many times and unfortunately, there was no

         24  procedure by which he could get a license.  There

         25  was no restrictions as far as bikes were concerned.
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          2                 So now we're finally creating

          3  something.  We're creating an ability to be

          4  franchised.  An ability to be licensed. An ability

          5  to be legitimized.  And the question now is, why all

          6  of a sudden, after three years, they want to take

          7  Partybike off the streets, when Partybike is a great

          8  thing in Times Square?  I mean, I have pictures

          9  here. My daughter's 25th birthday, and this is way

         10  back there in November.  Excuse me, October 6th, I

         11  should remember my daughter's birthday, October 6,

         12  2004.  This is a picture of my daughter and a number

         13  of her friends enjoying the party bike.  Now she  --

         14    we employed a restaurant for her birthday.  And

         15  she had maybe 75 friends there.  So I called Don

         16  Domite, and I said, Don, I love that bike, everybody

         17  loves that bike.  Why don't you bring the bike to

         18  the restaurant and take the kids for a little ride.

         19  I call her a kid.  She's 25 years old.  At that

         20  time.

         21                 And it was a tremendous hit.  And I

         22  have a number of pictures.  He even has one of those

         23  pictures on his website.  It was a home run.  And

         24  the tourists, for every one person that rides that

         25  party bike, there's ten people taking pictures of
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          2  that party bike.  And there's a thousand people

          3  looking at that party bike. Because I spend a lot of

          4  time at Times Square.  My office is on 40th Street.

          5  And I go to a lot of shows.  And that thing really

          6  stands out.  People like it.  It makes the City a

          7  happy experience. Times Square, after September

          8  11th, a happy experience.  A beautiful experience.

          9                 Now, he's been operating for three

         10  years.  And I understand the problems.  I mean,

         11  there's no question there has to be restrictions.

         12                 I have two cars in the City.  And

         13  I've had numerous bikes.  And when I ran for City

         14  Council, the bike issue came up when I was running

         15  against Gifford Miller.  And they wanted to ban --

         16  talking about banning bikes on the streets, you

         17  know, charging the people that make the deliveries.

         18  Banning those things as well, because  --  I said,

         19  well, you know, when I want my Chinese food, I want

         20  to get it as fast as possible.  So they scrapped

         21  that for a little while.

         22                 But as far as  --  we got to balance

         23  our needs.  And last weekend, I had to go pay a

         24  shiva call, and it was Five Borough Bike Day.  Well

         25  you ought to try and get around Manhattan or
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          2  Brooklyn, or Queens   --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          4                 MR. STROUGO: It was impossible, okay?

          5    And a lot of people work.  So we have to balance

          6  these things out.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Mr.

          8  Strougo.

          9                 Okay.  --

         10                 MR. STROUGO: Look, could I just add

         11  one thing?  I'm sorry.  There's one thing I  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Actually, no, you

         13  can't.  We got to get out of here before five, and I

         14  don't want to  --

         15                 MR. STROUGO: I just want to mention,

         16  there's a company called Scooterbugs  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: There's 20 other

         18  people that need to testify in order for me to hear

         19  everybody.  I got to keep moving.

         20                 MR. STROUGO: But I just have to say

         21  one thing. There's a company called Scooterbugs.

         22  They  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you very

         24  much Mr. Strougo.

         25                 Please send us a letter and we can
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          2  follow through on it.

          3                 MR. STROUGO: All right.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next

          5  panel is George Bliss.  M. Kalmanson.  And William

          6  Welk.  Are you still here? William Welk.  Welch.

          7  Wealch?  Welch?  Okay.  And --

          8                 Again, I don't mean to be rude, but

          9  in order for everybody to at least be heard, we got

         10  to try to keep it within the timeframe.  And it's

         11  3:30 already.  We have to be out of here by five

         12  o'clock.

         13                 MR. BLISS: You got it.  And I have to

         14  say, I really empathize with you, Mr. Comrie.  I

         15  wish you had more help. I wish the other Members of

         16  the Committee were here to hear the testimony. We,

         17  as an industry, have a lot of concerns with this new

         18  bill, which was just introduced to us last Friday.

         19  And I don't know if the version of it that's been

         20  presented to yesterday in the City Council is the

         21  same as what we have as of last Friday.  So my

         22  comments are regarding the bill we were you know,

         23  privileged to see last Friday, from the Consumer

         24  Affairs agency.  And I don't know if that's the same

         25  as Intro. 331, so there's a lot of questions.  But I
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          2  want to emphasize that this bill is not in any way

          3  like Intro. 75.

          4                 I want to skip some of my rhetoric

          5  and get to the point.  Today, we face a proposition

          6   --  we in the pedicab industry  --  so ruthless, so

          7  crafted to hurt, to bind, and ruin us, that it

          8  resembles not Shangri- la, or even New York, but

          9  more closely a Kafta novel, a really bad dream.

         10  This bill from DCA is the ban bill, disguised as

         11  regulation.

         12                 Regulation of pedicabs is simple, and

         13  requires only common sense.  We are  small

         14  businesses.  One could say we are on the side of the

         15  angels, but in spite of our idealism, we weren't

         16  born yesterday.  We know what's going on here.

         17                 The taxi medallion owners are behind

         18  these machinations, including getting the

         19  Commissioner the authority to unilaterally ban

         20  pedicabs from any streets, limit the number of

         21  pedicabs.  It's plain as day that the DCA wrote this

         22  latest bill after consulting their industry, not our

         23  industry.  In fact, the only information they sought

         24  from the Pedicab Owners Association was the number

         25  of drivers and the number of pedicabs in New York.
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          2  They had no interest in anything like the dimensions

          3  of pedicabs, the safety precautions that we already

          4  take, the number of passengers that pedicabs are

          5  designed to carry.  They really sought absolutely no

          6  input from us on this new bill.  Unlike Gerson, in

          7  Intro. 75, who consulted with us for at least six

          8  months to a year.

          9                 Therefore, DCA is ignorant about

         10  everything we do, from how many people we carry to

         11  the dimensions of the pedicabs. Their rules limit

         12  technological advancements, including the

         13  development of wheelchair accessible pedicabs, and

         14  passenger assisted pedicabs.  They ignore our

         15  testimony about rate structure. For instance, is it

         16  satisfactory to post on the cab, please ask for a

         17  price quote before the ride?  It's not at all clear

         18  in that bill whether this would be satisfactory.

         19                 And burden us with triple the

         20  insurance requirements for yellow cabs and horse

         21  carriages.  And I'm glad that Mitchell Kalmanson,

         22  who handles pedicab insurance is here to compare

         23  horse carriage risks with pedicab risks.  I think

         24  he's the next one to testify.

         25                 Most egregiously, this proposal gives

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  one un- elected bureaucrat the authority to limit

          3  the number of pedicabs and to ban pedicabs entirely,

          4  without review, or cause.  The City Council should

          5  never give up this authority.

          6                 It also, and this is contradictory to

          7  what Mintz said earlier today, but in my reading of

          8  the bill, it inexplicably removes Gerson's provision

          9  that pedicab permits be non transferrable and non-

         10  sellable.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We discussed that

         12  earlier.

         13                 MR. BLISS: There is no explanation,

         14  except that the authors of this document did the

         15  bidding of the medallion owners, who want us out of

         16  here.  Failing that, they want a medallion system

         17  like their own applied to our industry, so they can

         18  bid up, or broker up the price of those medallions

         19  out of our reach.

         20                 The irony of all of this is, we are

         21  no threat to them.  Common sense will tell you this.

         22    We give short rides to people who want to

         23  celebrate or explore our City, or have waited too

         24  long, and can't get a yellow cab at rush hour, in

         25  the rain.
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          2                 Pedicabs would have to number in the

          3  thousands before it would even be worthwhile to

          4  study the effect on the value of their medallions.

          5  Proof of this is in the current issuing of 900 more

          6  yellow cab medallions.  Each auction has led to ever

          7  higher valuations.

          8                 So we, as an industry. Look to you

          9  and to your Committee, to lead our City at this

         10  crucial moment, away from  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Mr.

         12  Bliss.

         13                 MR. BLISS.  -- This coddling of these

         14  monopolistic forces.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Mr.

         16  Bliss.  Just to let you know, we will probably be

         17  looking at the DCA practice of transferring

         18  licenses.  That's come up to me, and actually, in

         19  three other industries that they license, and that's

         20  something that we'll be looking at.  They have a

         21  general policy.  It's not a new policy that they

         22  don't transfer license.  But the tow industry, the

         23  funeral industry, and I forget the other industry

         24  that's come to me about that problem.  They all feel

         25  that that's very problematic. Not being able to sell
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          2  your business with the business intact.  So that's

          3  something that we will look at.  The rest of the

          4  stuff will have to go to the next gentleman.

          5                 MR. KALMANSON: Greetings. My name is

          6  Mitchell Kalmanson, from Orlando, Florida.  I'm an

          7  insurance broker that specializes in the liability

          8  for horse- drawn carriages, pedicabs, and the like.

          9  And I am also licensed duly here in the State of New

         10  York.  I have come up to support the pedicabs, and

         11  also entertain any liability questions that the

         12  panel may have.

         13                 Also, one of the points that was

         14  brought up, is that the carriages are required to

         15  carry smaller liminal liability on each unit, as

         16  opposed to the pedicabs, is verbose.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I'll get

         18  back to the insurance questions after we hear from

         19  the next gentleman.

         20                 Sir, Mr. Welk.

         21                 MR. WELCH: Hello.  My name is William

         22  Welch.  I've been a pedicab freelance mechanic for

         23  some time.  And I've been in the industry for seven

         24  years, in four different locations around the

         25  country, and New York is definitely my favorite
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          2  place to ride.

          3                 One of the regulations on Section 253

          4  of the new proposal regulates the axle width to 48

          5  inches.  Now, that would eliminate 83 percent of

          6  bikes, because the most common bike is 50 inches,

          7  which is the Mainstreet model. And it would limit it

          8  to three models that are the Tipkey (phonetic), the

          9  Railroad Taxi, and the English made Cycle Maximus.

         10                 So it's just showing that  --.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Whoa, whoa, whoa.

         12    You ran through that pretty quickly.

         13                 MR. WELSH: I'm sorry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You say we're

         15  eliminating 83 percent of the bikes that are out

         16  there now?

         17                 MR. WELSH: Because there's the Main

         18  Street, which has a 50 inch axle, and as mentioned

         19  earlier, the Charleston has about a 54 inch axle.

         20  And those are the two most common bikes in town

         21  right now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The Main Street

         23  is 50 inch, and the Charleston is 54.  Okay.  Go

         24  ahead.  I'm sorry.

         25                 MR. WELSH: And so the overall affect
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          2  would essentially be that they would be shut down

          3  the whole industry. Just by that one section alone.

          4                 I personally think the Charleston is

          5  the biggest, the fastest, and the most comfortable,

          6  because of the way it's geared.  And the four inch

          7  thick seats.

          8                 But that's the main thing of the   --

          9    I think there is some conflict of interest too,

         10  because the Commissioner of the DCA was given a ride

         11  by Vello Taxis (phonetic) and so he says those are

         12  the kind of bikes he wants to see around town.  And

         13  there's already, you know, over you know, 15 times,

         14  10 times more of the other bikes around.  So --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So you're

         16  saying that most of the bikes that are out now would

         17  be adversely affected by this new law.

         18                 MR. WELSH: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I got it.

         20  Including the proposed motorized bikes.

         21                 MR. WELSH: Yes, I believe so.  I

         22  don't know the dimensions of those.  I've never

         23  looked at any of them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  All

         25  right.  Thank you Mr. Welsh.
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          2                 What kind of insurance liabilities

          3  are you talking about specifically?

          4                 MR. KALMANSON: I'm sorry.  I didn't

          5  hear.  What kind of liability, what sir?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What kind of

          7  numbers are you looking at?

          8                 MR. KALMANSON: Yes sir.  Well I have

          9  designed an insurance policy specifically to insure

         10  the pedicab operators here in New York.  We also can

         11  do the notification to the Consumer Affairs, if you

         12  need it.  The $1 million coverage, or any coverage

         13  there above, if you require lower limits.  It is

         14  designed to cover both the unit owner and/or its

         15  independent contractors and employees.  We'll also

         16  include additional insurers that are the sponsors or

         17  the City's.  It is to cover third- party property

         18  damage and/or bodily injury that a pedicab would do,

         19  cause to someone, or something else.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Did you hear when

         21  the gentleman from the  --  how would that deal with

         22  the no fault issue?

         23                 MR. KALMANSON: Well there is no no

         24  fault, it's a non- motorized vehicle.  The no fault

         25  on the motorized vehicle would become primary
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          2  insurance only for the medical aspect, not the

          3  third- party liability.   If  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So if a non-

          5  motorized vehicle hits a motorized vehicle, then the

          6  liability is solely on the motorized  --

          7                 MR. KALMANSON: No sir.  The pip, or

          8  the no- fault insurance would become primary on the

          9  motorized vehicle.  The individual unit that is

         10  fault, would be the policy that is triggered for

         11  third- party liability.  So therefore, if the

         12  pedicab is responsible, it would trigger the

         13  pedicab's liability.  And vice verse if it was

         14  another vehicle or another unit.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  All right.

         16    We've been joined by Council Member Kendall

         17  Stewart.  And I want to thank the panel.  I would

         18  like to get back to it another time with some more

         19  questions on the insurance piece.

         20                 MR. KALMANSON: Absolutely sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         22                 The next panel will be Robert Tipton.

         23  Andres Arango.  And Peter Meitzler.  Your all from

         24  Mr. Rickshaw.

         25                 You can start.
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          2                 MR. TIPTON: Hello.  My name is Rob

          3  Tipton.  I own Mr. Rickshaw.  We lease 41 pedicabs.

          4  Can you hear me?  We lease 41 pedicabs.  They are

          5  insured.  They go out with lights.  The brakes work.

          6    I am so concerned about safety, that sometimes at

          7  night I do not sleep.

          8                 I'm in support of this proposal.  I

          9  have a few concerns.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Which one?

         11                 MR. TIPTON: One of which is that you

         12  must possess a motor vehicle license in order to

         13  operate a non- motorized vehicle. I just don't think

         14  it's appropriate.  The pedicab is a specific, unique

         15  vehicle.  It's not a motor vehicle.  It's not a car.

         16    It's more of a bicycle than it is anything else.

         17  I don't believe that a motor vehicle license is

         18  necessary.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Would you agree

         20  that that would be a better barometer than DCA is

         21  setting up a driver- vehicle assessment class?

         22                 MR. TIPTON: If there is a special

         23  license that you could possess to operate the

         24  pedicab?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: It would have to
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          2  be after there was some visual testing.  I mean, the

          3  reason that they came up with a driver's license is

          4  that it would assume that people would have an

          5  ability to understand road signs, stop lights, left

          6  and right turn signals, and that type of thing.

          7  Where what you're proposing would create DCA to have

          8  the ability to come out and do  --  or force them to

          9  do testing.  And come up with their own system to

         10  create another license category.  I think that would

         11    --  my opinion, it would make it more odorous for

         12  your drivers to meet that hurdle than to meet the

         13  hurdle of having a New York State or a registered

         14  driver's license.  We're not even limiting it to New

         15  York State.

         16                 MR. TIPTON: I guess I'm just speaking

         17  on behalf of some of my drivers, who are New York

         18  citizens.  They lived here their entire life.  They

         19  don't own a vehicle.  They don't drive a car.  They

         20  do not have a driver's license.  Not saying that

         21  they can't get one, but --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  Well I'm

         23  saying that you know,  --  I'm not saying I agree

         24  with everything in the bill, I'm just saying, in my

         25  mind, if you start to allow them to do a  -- and I'm
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          2  interrupting your speech,  --  if you leave that

          3  open, there has to be some kind of barometer to

          4  assess the person's ability to operate in New York

          5  City streets.  And I know while you're saying it's

          6  man  --   person power, to be politically correct

          7   --  that we still need to know that that person has

          8  an understanding of street and traffic regulations.

          9                 MR. TIPTON: When and individual

         10  contacts me and they want to drive the pedicab, ride

         11  the pedicab as an operator, they must go through our

         12  safety course for our company.  I think it's

         13  imperative.  I will not let them go out unless we

         14  explain  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Who designed your

         16  safety course?

         17                 MR. TIPTON: My self any my partner.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Based on what

         19  model?

         20                 MR. TIPTON: Just my experience from

         21  riding the pedicab since 2001.  I know how the bike

         22  operates, how to operate it safely in the streets of

         23  New York.  And I try to instill that in a driver

         24  before they leave my shop.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I'm sorry.
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          2    I cut you off.  What else were you going to say?

          3                 MR. TIPTON: I was going to reiterate

          4  what Will had talked about with the 48 inch

          5  restriction.  That would limit a great number of the

          6  bikes  --  maybe possibly by less than an inch, and

          7  inch and a half  --  but the Main Street pedicab is

          8   --  has the most numbers out on the streets.  It's

          9  a safe bike.  It's not too narrow.  I think the 48

         10  inches is just a hair under what it should be.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Thank you.

         12    Next.

         13                 MR. ARANGO: Okay.  Good afternoon.

         14  My name is Andres Arango.  I started in this

         15  business close to eight years ago, renting a bike

         16  from Ponycab, George Bliss.  In 2002, I bought my

         17  first cab, and I eventually built it up to 27 cabs.

         18  I have some concerns with what is placed in this

         19  Consumer Affairs bill, the bill that came out of the

         20  Mayor's Office.  One of them is, restricting our

         21  movement, you know.  One part of the bill says we

         22  should not be able to go over bridges.  And I for

         23  one, have gone many time over the Brooklyn Bridge,

         24  and I've gone to the Bronx to Yankee Stadium, to

         25  work the Yankee games.  And I don't see any reason
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          2  why we should be restricted from using the bridges.

          3                 Another thing that concerns me is

          4  again, the axle, the issue with the axles.  I wonder

          5  how the Consumer  --  whoever wrote that provision

          6  came up with the number 48 inches, when most of the

          7  pedicabs in New York City are over 48 inches.

          8                 And another thing that I was

          9  concerned about is the way the City would want to

         10  put limits on the number of pedicabs. I think that

         11  at a time where we are in the Middle East, fighting

         12  for what many people believe to be a war for oil,

         13  now should be the last  --  you know, this should be

         14  the last thing that we should be concerning

         15  ourselves with, is limiting the number of vehicles

         16  that are  --  that do not use oil to move.  And we

         17  should, instead of trying to limit those kinds of

         18  vehicles, we should try to progress with making more

         19  vehicles  --  you know, that type of transportation

         20  more available to the citizenry.

         21                 And those are really my concerns.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         23                 My Counsel is telling me that it says

         24  wheelbase, not overall width.  The wheelbase is 48

         25  inches.
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          2                 MR. ARANGO: The axle.  Which is the

          3  wheelbase.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Is the wheelbase.

          5

          6                 MR. ARANGO: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  That's the

          8  maximum width of the entire  --  isn't the wheelbase

          9     --  doesn't the carriage wider than the

         10  wheelbase?

         11                 MR. ARANGO: No.  On most of the cabs,

         12  the axle is wider than the carriage.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I just

         14  wanted to get a clarification on that.  Council

         15  Member Stewart has a question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you

         17  Council Member Comrie.  I don't know if  --  these

         18  questions may be answered before, but I just wanted

         19  to get some clarity.  What's the average width or

         20  length of these vehicles?

         21                 MR. ARANGO: I would say  --  I've

         22  never  --  I cant' remember the average length.  I

         23  would say maybe seven feet long. Seven feet long.

         24  And around 50 inches wide, you know, from axle to

         25  axle.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And do you

          3  think that these vehicles should be standardized?

          4                 MR. ARANGO: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So you're

          6  saying that they can be any size, any  --

          7                 MR. ARANGO: Well maybe there could be

          8  a limit to how wide you would make a vehicle, but I

          9  don't think they should be standardized, because  --

         10    actually, there are a lot of people designing

         11  different types of pedicabs, so I'm not sure that

         12  now, at this point, would be a time to standardize

         13  pedicabs.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Would a

         15  vehicle that is seven  --  let's say approximately

         16  seven feet long, and 50 inches wide, do you think

         17  they should follow the vehicle laws of the City of

         18  New York?

         19                 MR. ARANGO: Yes.  Certainly.  The

         20  traffic laws, yes, I do.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So you're

         22  saying they should follow all the traffic laws.

         23  Even in terms of parking and all those thing.

         24                 MR. ARANGO: Not necessarily, because

         25  you can park a --  it's only 50 inches wide, so you
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          2  could actually park it so that it barely sticks out

          3  the width of a car into the street.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But what I'm

          5  trying to get at, is basically, I want to know what

          6  the exception that you would want, that is different

          7  from having a car, or a different vehicle. What are

          8  the exception?  If you're saying that it's seven

          9  feet long, and 50 inches wide, it means, then, it's

         10  about the size of a car.  And I want to know if

         11  there's going to be any exceptions  -- the only

         12  difference here is that it's being  --  it's not

         13  motorized.  So I just want to know what are the   --

         14    what regulations that we have now that you think

         15  should not be contributed to these type of vehicles.

         16                 MR. ARANGO: I said seven feet long, I

         17  guessed it because  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Regardless of

         19  what the length is, you know, but it's about the

         20  size of a regular car. That's a smaller car.  I'm

         21  trying to see if there's any rules or regulations

         22  that has been observed by motorized vehicles that

         23  you think that this vehicle should not be observing.

         24                 MR. ARANGO: Parking, I would say  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Just parking?
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          2                 MR. ARANGO: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes?

          4                 MR. MEITZLER: Thank you.  My name is

          5  Peter Meitzler. I could also add to what Andres

          6  said.  If we would not be considered as a commercial

          7  vehicle, I know for a fact, and I'll skip over this

          8  part of my comments, but drivers are being prevented

          9  from using Central Park right now, by Parks

         10  Enforcement Officers, and they're being given a

         11  ticket saying that they are commercial vehicles.  So

         12  when the park is closed to motor vehicle traffic,

         13  they are also being prevented from just traveling

         14  across the park. So I would lobby for that

         15  permission.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So this

         17  vehicle is being used in regular streets, so I'm

         18  looking  --  I'm not talking about just the parks,

         19  I'm talking about regular street.  And I want to

         20  know what the regulations that they observe, or they

         21  should be asked to observe, as compared to a car.

         22  Seeing that they are about the size of a car, you

         23  know, if we have to make it legal, and to really

         24  have   --  enhance this industry, we have to make

         25  sure that we are not taking away from the other side
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          2  of the coin.

          3                 So, you're saying that you don't

          4  think they should be asked to pay for parking, so

          5  they can just park anyplace, but not allowed to  --

          6  not pay for parking?  That's what you're saying?

          7                 MR. ARANGO: Well, depending on where,

          8  because like I said, you could park a  --  the way

          9  we normally park, we could park like perpendicular

         10  to the sidewalk, and we take up very little parking

         11  space.  You know  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You still

         13  take up a space.

         14                 MR. ARANGO: Right.  It's not like  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You take up a

         16  car space.  No matter how you look at it, you'd

         17  still be taking up a car space.

         18                 I just feel that we would like to  --

         19    my opinion, basically, is that I would like to

         20  encourage this industry, but I want to make sure

         21  that they do their part in terms of the regulations

         22  in terms of the City of New York.  So in other

         23  words, I don't want you to feel you have your cake

         24  and eat it too.  They should follow the same rules

         25  and all of those things in terms of -  that are
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          2  really, you know, conducive to what you're doing,

          3  but at least, at least you know, have some sort of

          4  guidelines.

          5                 MR. ARANGO: And I don't believe that

          6  anybody in the industry is against rules.  Following

          7  the rules.  We don't want rules that are going to

          8  make it impossible for us to operate. That's really

          9  the issue, because if we have rules like not being

         10  able  --  or where we're going to have a seat belt

         11  for every person, or we're going to have a billion

         12  dollar insurance, or where you're going to limit the

         13  cabs to 200.  We just don't want to be ruled out of

         14  existence, where we can't operate.

         15                 So yes, we don't mind  --  I don't

         16  think anybody who is in this industry minds playing

         17  by the rules.  We've been regulating ourselves from

         18  day one.  Most of us have insurance, even though

         19  we're not required to have it.  We don't mind

         20  playing by the rules, we just don't want to have

         21  rules that will keep  --  put us out of business.

         22  And that's really the issue.  That's why we're here.

         23    And I think that we've shown that in the way that

         24  we've behaved throughout our existence, that we do

         25  not mind going by the rules, paying our dues, paying
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          2  insurance, training drivers, you know, trying to

          3  keep our equipment safe.  What we don't want is

          4  rules that will make it impossible for us, or

          5  unprofitable for us to operate.  That's really the

          6   --  one of the big issues that we have.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The only

          8  thing that I see here is that when you're operating

          9  in the park, which most of the time, that regular or

         10  motorized vehicles are not allowed to go, you can go

         11  there.  I don't see all the rules are being applied

         12  there. But I feel that when you come onto the

         13  streets, you should be observing the rules of the

         14  motorized vehicles on the street.  And that's how I

         15  see it.  And that's the only way I feel that I will

         16  you know, support this.  If those things are being

         17  observed.  When you are in the park, where all the

         18  vehicles are, are not allowed to go, then it's a

         19  different story then when you're on the street,

         20  where you're competing or you competing with other

         21  vehicles, maybe now some of them have be your size

         22  or even larger than your size, you should be subject

         23  to the same rules as those vehicles on the street.

         24  Whether it's parking or whether it's whatever you do

         25  on that street.
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          2                 MR. ARANGO: And I really believe that

          3  most drivers and owners, I believe, support that,

          4  that we do follow the rules like everyone else.

          5  Like I said, my concern is, as the industry is

          6  growing, and as the potential for us to go to other

          7  boroughs exists, that we're not you know, squashed

          8  before that happens.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  We're

         10  going to move forward, Councilman.  We have a lot of

         11  other people to hear from before five o'clock.  I

         12  want to thank the panel for being here.

         13                 MR. MEITZLER: Could I actually

         14  present?  I'll go as fast as possible.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh, you didn't

         16  present.  I'm sorry.  Excuse me.

         17                 MR. MEITZLER: Thank you.  My name is

         18  Peter Meitzler. And I'm the owner of Manhattan

         19  Rickshaw Company, incorporated in 1995.  And also

         20  the Treasurer and Vice President of the New York

         21  City Pedicab Owners Association, a recently

         22  incorporated not- for profit trade association.  And

         23  I thank the Committee Chair's patience, and the

         24  Committee Members, and the Council Members, for

         25  setting time aside, a lot of time aside, to hear our
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          2  comments on these pedicab regulations.

          3                 At our last hearing, I was asked to

          4  present a list of comments developed by our trade

          5  association, and those comments, unfortunately

          6  stretched over 15 pages.  Today, we are really being

          7  very brief, and short, and I hope to have this done

          8  in maybe about a minute and a half.  And I thank

          9  you, Mitchell Kalmanson, from the Kalmanson Agency,

         10  who underwrites many of our  --  whose firm, in

         11  conjunction with Lloyds of London, provides

         12  insurance coverage for us to operate.

         13                 Not only do I work with the trade

         14  association, I operate a mid- size pedicab company,

         15  Manhattan Rickshaw.  Mr. Tipton operates Mr.

         16  Rickshaw LLC, very similar names.  And we are now in

         17  our 11th year of service.  I need to consider my

         18  crew of drivers, numbering up to 50 active and semi-

         19  active drivers, who lease pedicabs from me.  Their

         20  primary concern right now is that the streets are

         21  being crowded with cabs that are being operated

         22  unsafely, and which may be uninsured.  So my first

         23  point is, while I am not overly concerned about a

         24  DCA regulation requiring a rate structure being

         25  posted, I know that the driver and passenger can
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          2  work out a price.  What a passenger cannot

          3  negotiate, however, with a driver, is whether that

          4  cab is safe, and whether it has insurance.  So we

          5  need attention to that as soon as possible.

          6                 That being said, the document

          7  produced by Consumer Affairs eliminates our right to

          8  travel in Central Park.  In other words, we would

          9  not be able to travel with other traffic from one

         10  side of the City to the other.  Right now,   --  I

         11  guess I promised I would skip over that part.

         12                 We're also not allowed to travel

         13  across bike lanes on bridges unless we hire a truck

         14  to move our pedicabs from one borough to another for

         15  an event.  So I would suggest respectfully, that

         16  perhaps we could create a new category of bicycle

         17  vehicle that is a commercial bicycle, but still

         18  acknowledges that the essence of a pedicab is a

         19  bicycle.

         20                 The DCA draft further provides that

         21  the Commissioner can restrict or presence on certain

         22  streets in the future, without community input,

         23  without a hearing, interfering with our right to

         24  travel also.  And I've also been told we might see a

         25  two- minute time limitation on where we might stop.
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          2  Although I did hear the DOT Commissioner mention

          3  creation of stands next to shelters.

          4                 So we were hoping that the DCA would

          5  have involved us more in this process, but we were

          6  only asked about the number of pedicabs, and the

          7  number of businesses.  So therefore, we asked that

          8  the Committee choose only the most workable aspects

          9  of the DCA draft, and revert to the original Intro.

         10  75, sponsored by six Council Members for the

         11  majority of the regulation's language. Thanks very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 Thank you all for coming.  I wish I

         16  had more time for questions.  We're going to have

         17  more meetings on this.  If we didn't have so many

         18  people that wanted to testify, I could do more

         19  detailed questioning.  I want to apologize to

         20  everybody again.  I don't mean to be  --  but we're

         21  out of time.

         22                 Spencer Monk.  Melissa Ludwig.  And

         23  Gilgor Tashkrich.  Thank you.  They're beating you

         24  up anyway.

         25                 Pilott LLC, did you leave?  Oh, There
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          2  they are, okay.  Go ahead.

          3                 MR. MONK: Okay.  Good afternoon.  My

          4  name is Spencer Monk.  I've grown up in Manhattan,

          5  and I've been in the pedicab industry in some form

          6  or the other for four years now.

          7                 The new bill that was just introduced

          8  by the Bloomberg Administration, there's a width

          9  limitation.  A lot of people have discussed this.

         10  I'd just like to put some facts out there.

         11  Approximately 83 percent of the pedicabs in

         12  operation in Manhattan right now exceed that width

         13  limits.  Brands Mainstreet, Charleston, and

         14  Goldstone, a Turkish company brand cabs, would be

         15  barred altogether from operating in New York City.

         16  Now, I own three pedicabs, and I operate one myself.

         17    They're all Tiki brand, so potentially, this could

         18  be good for my business, but in general, I find this

         19  part of the bill to be unacceptable, as many of my

         20  friends and colleagues would be banned from

         21  operating in New York.

         22                 Another part of this new bill bothers

         23  me is the fact that we would be barred from Central

         24  Park.  I think it's not good to discourage the only

         25  type of transportation in Central Park that produces
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          2  no waste products, no odor, and no exhaust and very

          3  little noise, other than a comprehensive history of

          4  Central Park's historic lure.

          5                 As for the ban on conference bikes in

          6  the most recent bill, it would also ban tandem

          7  bicycles for three people or more, even for private

          8  use, which I find unjust and nonsensical.

          9                 Giving the Commissioner and the

         10  Commissioner alone, of DCA, power to restrict

         11  pedicabs from certain areas of Manhattan, or the

         12  power to ban them altogether, whenever they choose,

         13  does not do justice to our business, which, for

         14  better or worse, has been a successful run for over

         15  10 years now.

         16                 There are many reasons why I welcome

         17  regulation. For one, it would force all those

         18  drivers on the fringes of our business to carry

         19  liability insurance, as I have had for the entire

         20  run of my business, and I know most other members of

         21  the Owners Association have.  The most major reason

         22  is because that I believe that a proper regulation

         23  bill can protect our business and help us grow to

         24  better server tourists and residents alike.

         25                 Pro regulation?  Yes.  I'm extremely

                                                            146

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  pro regulation. And I support fully Intro. 75.  But

          3  this is a ban bill disguised as a regulation bill,

          4  and I thank you for your patience.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          6                 MS. LUDWIG: Hello.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Hello.

          8                 MS. LUDWIG: My name is Melissa

          9  Ludwig, and I'm a pedicab driver with Mr. Rickshaw,

         10  since April, 2005.  I have a great speech prepared,

         11  but listening to everybody's testimonies, I would

         12  like to start off with an improv of a training

         13  program.

         14                 As I said, I ride with Mr. Rickshaw,

         15  Rob, who is sitting right here, is one of the

         16  owners.  And their training program is absolutely

         17  exceptional, beyond belief.  I believe fully that

         18  the City should have a training program, that they

         19  work with us, the pedicab industry, the owners that

         20  do have a very extensive training program in place.

         21                 I showed up at Mr. Rickshaw and I was

         22  with them for several hours, three or four, maybe

         23  even five, before I was allowed to get on a rickshaw

         24  by myself.  A pedicab by myself.  So if you have any

         25  questions regarding that program, I just would like
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          2  to say, as a driver, I'm fully in support of the

          3  City structuring a training program for drivers,

          4  before they are allowed to go on the City streets.

          5                 Real quickly, let's see.  It's an

          6  honor to speak before you once again about the

          7  pedicab regulation and licensing program.  At our

          8  last City Council hearing in February, it was

          9  wonderful to witness your Committee in full support

         10  for the survival of the pedicab industry here in New

         11  York City.  I smiled extra big when I heard mention

         12  of pedicab lanes, and was elated to feel the

         13  overwhelming unison of support that this Council put

         14  forth on the strong emphasis for our industry to not

         15  be regulated out of business.

         16                 First and foremost, I would like to

         17  thank the Council for recognizing the necessity for

         18  our industry to be monitored and regulated.  It is

         19  no surprise to me that New York City has an amazing

         20  opportunity to set the precedent for regulating

         21  pedicabs worldwide.  Our City has an awesome

         22  opportunity to be a role model for cities of this

         23  country and to cities of the world, as we, sometimes

         24  referred to as the City of the World, do not want to

         25  be bypassed by other cities, when it comes to
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          2  pedicab regulation.

          3                 It is no secret that there is an

          4  issue of urban clogging here in New York.  Other

          5  cities, too, have been feeling similar congestion,

          6  and I've responded with everything from congestion

          7  tolls, to pedicab streets, to light rail systems.

          8  New York City has an excellent opportunity to be a

          9  shining example on how it can utilize such a

         10  sustainable transportation system, and how it can

         11  affect congestion in a positive way, on our busy

         12  City streets.

         13                 We have the opportunity to lead the

         14  world with our response to pedicabs and pedicab

         15  regulation.  This is our chance. Let us pull through

         16  and succeed, and show how strong and powerful this

         17  City is.

         18                 Now is the time to let New York use

         19  our booming industry to enhance New York City

         20  streets with this new means of transportation, to

         21  allow people to get from A to B in style, in a

         22  nonpolluting, and super fun ride.  Let us show the

         23  world who we are, New York.  Let us show the world

         24  what we are about, and to prove that we are a city

         25  ahead of our time.  And together, we will persevere,
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          2  to ensure the success of our industry, and that both

          3  sides here are satisfied.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          5                 MR. TASHKVICH: Chairman Comrie and

          6  colleagues, my name is Gligor Tashkvich, and I'm

          7  providing expert assistance to my business partner,

          8  who is currently an experienced pedicab driver. Last

          9  time I testified about the interest of our partners

         10  in establishing a nonprofit company, which would be

         11  called PILOTT LLC. PILOTT LLC is an acronym for

         12  Pedicab Inspection, Licensing, Operator Training and

         13  Testing.

         14                 The purpose of today's testimony,

         15  however, is to discuss the Administration's proposed

         16  Local Law, on the regulation and licensing of

         17  pedicabs.  I have comments on eight different

         18  sections, and I bet your indulgence, Mr. Chairman,

         19  for the extra minute it will take to present them.

         20                 Regarding Section 2249, Definitions,

         21  Item B, our pedicabs are allowed to be battery

         22  assisted, or to have any other kind of mechanical

         23  acceleration devices like hub motors.  The

         24  definition does not provide for these options.

         25                 Point two, Section 2252, Insurance.
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          2   --  Two points. Number one, we object to pedicabs

          3  having to carry more insurance than taxicabs do.

          4  And number two, we would like the law to specify

          5  that a designated amount also represents a cap, so

          6  that aggressive claims, greedy lawyers can't

          7  bankrupt pedicab operators and businesses in the

          8  back of dubious claims.  This Committee heard

          9  testimony at the last hearing, wherein such claims

         10  put at least one pedicab business out of operation.

         11                 Point three, Section 2253, Required

         12  Equipment of Pedicabs.  We reject the proposal that

         13  the pedicabs should be limited to carrying only two

         14  adults and one baby not older than three years old.

         15  As proposed in this legislation, the outside length

         16  of the pedicab carriage can be 60 inches long.  Even

         17  allowing for the width of the construction material

         18  that forms a pedicab, we know that the seat width

         19  per person is still 18 inches, which is larger than

         20  any economy- class seat on airlines operating in

         21  America today.  Therefore, we state convincingly

         22  that up to three adults and two children should be

         23  permitted to sit in the back of a pedicab.  As in

         24  airlines, pedicab drivers wishing to carry children

         25  should be equipped with extension seat belts to
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          2  permit this.

          3                 Point four, Section 2256, Pedicab

          4  Driver's License. The law does not require training

          5  or testing of pedicab drivers.  Knowledge of the New

          6  York State motor vehicle law is not sufficient to

          7  automatically earn a pedicab driver's license.  I

          8  say this with high confidence, as someone who

          9  regularly bicycle rides around the perimeter of

         10  Central Park, I've been in, and have been witness to

         11  accidents involving bicyclists in the park, because

         12  in New York State, motor vehicle is clearly

         13  suspended within he confines of the park, and the

         14  Police Department does not enforce these laws or

         15  show care and concern to bicyclists who get in

         16  accidents.  This has been my continuous experience

         17  for the last several years.

         18                 You cannot expect each individual

         19  pedicab business to uniformly train or test their

         20  drivers, because it isn't being done today

         21  uniformly.  This comes back to my original testimony

         22  at the last hearing, on PILOTT.  Drivers need to

         23  meet a standard, not only of pedicab operation, but

         24  also City topography, general tourism knowledge,

         25  customer service, and English language skills. Point
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          2  five, Section 2258, Restrictions on the Operation of

          3  Pedicabs.  We take note of Item Three, which

          4  requires pedicabs to receive authorization from the

          5  Department of Parks and Recreation, which, while it

          6  would be preferable to strike this clause

          7  completely, we ask that draft at least be amended to

          8  say that no such authorization will be unreasonably

          9  withheld, with the intent of creating a monopoly for

         10  horse and carriage owners.

         11                 Point six, regarding Section 2262,

         12  Penalties.  This section notes that the failure to

         13  operate a pedicab without a pedicab driver license

         14  is a criminal violation.  This is not like operating

         15  a motor vehicle that can kill someone.  This is a

         16  bicycle with a cart.  Therefore, we respectively

         17  suggest that in order for such proposed punishment

         18  to fit the crime, that it should be a civil, and not

         19  a criminal violation.

         20                 Point seven, regarding Section 2263,

         21  Enforcement. We take note of the over reach in the

         22  provisions of this section, that as written, would

         23  permit a secretary in the Department of Consumer

         24  Affairs to enforce a provision of this subchapter,

         25  or any regulation promulgated pursuant to the
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          2  subchapter.  This is completely unacceptable.

          3  Enforcement should be confined to all normal

          4  enforcement agencies.

          5                 And finally, point eight, regarding

          6  Section 2264, Rules.  At the last hearing, Council

          7  Member Baron stated very clearly his fear that the

          8  Administration would move to create an enormous

          9  regulatory bureaucracy, which would stifle this new

         10  energy efficient, environmentally friendly industry.

         11    In keeping with his concerns, we take specific

         12  objection to Item B, which completely fails to take

         13  into account any pending investment made by

         14  entrepreneurs in the City for additional pedicabs.

         15  If I signed a contract to purchase 50 more pedicabs

         16  today, and the Commissioner wakes up on the wrong

         17  side of the bed tomorrow morning, and decides to cap

         18  things where they are, who compensates me for my

         19  order?  We want any rule to clearly state that it

         20  will go into effect six months from the date of

         21  issue.  And to grandfather any existing pedicabs on

         22  the street at that time, so as to cover these

         23  situations.

         24                 And finally, in that section, Item C,

         25  we take note of the Commissioners of the Departments
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          2  of Consumer Affairs and Transportation can establish

          3  rule restrictions on the areas in which pedicabs are

          4  permitted to operate.  As per the previous

          5  testimony, the livelihood of this industry is

          6  predicated on business operations in the general

          7  vicinity of 14th Street to 57th Street, across the

          8  Manhattan Island.  This rule is currently worded in

          9  such a way as to eliminate the entire industry with

         10  one stroke of a pen, and therefore, represents an

         11  unacceptable concentration of power in two people

         12  who are subject to political influences. The

         13  solution is that the law should state that pedicabs

         14  can operate anywhere in the five boroughs of New

         15  York City, with the exception of tunnels and

         16  highways, as stated.  And that from time to time,

         17  seasonal restrictions may need to be imposed, such

         18  as around Times Square on New Year's Eve.  Thank you

         19  for your time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         21                 MR. TASHKVICH: Excuse me.  I have two

         22  corrections to something that was said before.

         23  There's now over 400 pedicabs in New York City.  And

         24  also, in response to one of the taxi guys, the angry

         25  taxi guy said before, we already have had running

                                                            155

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  rickshaws in New York City.  The business failed,

          3  and they've been sold.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Wait, say that

          5  again.

          6                 MR. TASHKVICH: We've already had

          7  running rickshaws in New York City.  He said, what's

          8  next, running rickshaws.  And we've already had a

          9  running rickshaw business, and it failed and they

         10  moved on somewhere else.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Thank you.

         12    And it's over 400.  Yes.

         13                 Kenneth Scott Kohanowski, sorry.  I'm

         14  mangling all these things.  Paul Muwanga.  And

         15  Donald Domite.

         16                 You can start.

         17                 MR. KOHANOWSKI: All right.  I'll keep

         18  my testimony short, just because I think everybody

         19  has said most everything I want to say.

         20  I come from a unique perspective.  I just started

         21  driving pedicabs yesterday.  But for the last five

         22  years, I was a lawyer.  Real Estate and Finance

         23  Lawyer at a prestigious firm in Midtown Manhattan.

         24  I worked at the top of Rockefeller, and behind a

         25  window looking out at the beautiful sky, and just
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          2  wishing I was outside. And when I'd leave my office

          3  at midnight, I would take pedicabs. All the time.

          4  My firm offered us vouchers.  We could take private

          5  cars home, that would cost $50 to $100; or we could

          6  take a regular cab, which costs half of what a

          7  pedicab costs.  But I chose pedicabs so I could be

          8  outside.  It was, you know, a socially conscious

          9  sort of decision to make, and I really enjoyed it.

         10  I lived in Chelsea at the time.

         11                 I left my firm three months ago, and

         12  went off traveling, and I was on a bus in Uruguay

         13  trying to figure out what I wanted to do when I got

         14  back to New York, and I was contemplating all these

         15  different things.  I decided to start my own

         16  practice. But in the mean time, I just want to do

         17  something fun for the Summer.

         18                 So I called a couple of  -- or I

         19  entered into contact with a couple rickshaw

         20  companies, and just to figure out how to do it, and

         21  I started driving.  You know.  So I could be

         22  outside,  I can meet people, I could show off the

         23  city that I love, New York City, to tourists.

         24                 So that's sort of my schpeel (sic).

         25  But I looked over briefly the regulations, that the
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          2  Mayor's Office put out.  And I mean, I also spoke to

          3  various members of the Pedicab Owners Association.

          4  And just a couple of things that I am very concerned

          5  about.

          6                 One is the ban in parks, and on

          7  bridges.  I live in Boerum Hill now, in Brooklyn.

          8  And I think that most of the pedicab activity is in

          9  Manhattan.  I think if you have that sort of ban,

         10  there wouldn't really be much opportunity to go back

         11  and forth between the boroughs and Manhattan.  It

         12  would basically make it a very Manhattan centric

         13  sort of regulation.

         14                 Another thing is Central Park.  And

         15  Prospect Park. I think just to get from one end of

         16  the City to the other end of the City, it's

         17  absolutely necessary that we have access.  And this

         18  regulation is an absolute ban on the pedicabs

         19  entering the parks, but what it does is it gives  --

         20    it's a ban until the City Parks actually comes up

         21  with some sort of regulation of its own, which means

         22  that you know, they could just delay it and not have

         23  any sort of regulation at all.  Or, they just cone

         24  up with some really heinous you know, rule against

         25  pedicabs in the parks.  And just a large part of
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          2  this business is in the park.

          3                 And that's pretty much all I have to

          4  say. Everything else  --  everybody else covered

          5  what I had to say.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next

          7  person.

          8                 MR. MUWANGA: My name is Paul Muwanga.

          9    I come from East Africa.  That's Uganda.  And I no

         10  longer ride the bikes.  I started by riding the

         11  pedicabs.  Then I was riding the superbikes. I was

         12  riding with Mr. Rob.  I was riding with Mr. James.

         13  I stared my own independent photography in the

         14  street, thanks to these two bikes.  They help me do

         15  that, and I started at the end of last year, around

         16  November.  And I've never had any accidents.  No

         17  customer complained to me, or sued me for any injury

         18  or nothing.

         19                 So it's a safe ride.  If I could ride

         20  to this time, for more than six months, this is a

         21  fair ride, and it's safe.  And I have pictures and I

         22  have testimonies with e- mails that I could give to

         23  this Committee to prove the appreciation of

         24  everybody that was riding these bikes.  I have

         25  pictures, I have e- mails.  And I've had phrases
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          2  like "This was the night".  "This was the ride of my

          3  life".  This was the excitement of the night".  And

          4  I could tell you that apart from the Broadway shows,

          5  these bikes are the most exciting thing in Times

          6  Square.

          7                 And no disrespect to the old guy who

          8  was sitting by this side, saying that the bikes

          9  belong to Coney Island.  These bikes belong in Times

         10  Square, and actually, the City should put stations

         11  for these bikes, so that people may request for them

         12  with regulations.  And bike tickets, or something

         13  like that.  To put some kind of regulation.  Because

         14  people ask for these bikes all the time.

         15                 And people come all over the world.

         16  They ask for these bikes.  But nobody knows, so the

         17  City should put some kind of regulation and maybe

         18  these bikes should be a solution to the City.

         19  Because there is a problem of cabs.  Sometimes I

         20  give people rides that have been waiting for one

         21  hour to get a cab.  So these cabs are not a

         22  solution.  These bikes are looked as a problem, but

         23  maybe they can be a solution if we do something to

         24  put them into some kind of regulation.

         25                 And before banning this, I would like
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          2  to invite anybody who is planning on banning this,

          3  before banning it, let's ride it.  It's outside

          4  there.  Let's try and ride it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          6  Next.

          7                 MR. DOMITE: My name is Don Domite.

          8  I've been operating Partybikes for the past three

          9  years.  Accident free.  And of course, being the

         10  first, you have to suffer the pitfalls and accept

         11  the benefits of the business.

         12                 I've been operating in Times Square

         13  and it's part of the New York City landscape.  I was

         14    --  they did documentaries on the bike.  They did

         15  documentaries on the business.  I was on the Tony

         16  Danza show, Good Morning America, CNN.  The bike is

         17  very well received, and if I can, can I just show

         18  you these pictures, so at least you can get a visual

         19  on it?

         20                 Okay.  I want to go over the

         21  misconceptions of the width of the bike.  It does

         22  fit in a traffic lane.  Not to compete with the

         23  pedicabs, but the visibility is better than a

         24  pedicab.  As you can see with the pictures.  It's

         25  very stable.  And the speeds, again, don't go over
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          2  12 miles an hour.

          3                 I own a fleet of 24 bikes.  My

          4  partner John Perizzo (phonetic) and myself invested

          5  over $400,000 in the business.  We have a fleet of

          6  pedicabs and party bikes.  And right now, what I'm

          7  doing, I'm aligning myself with a company by the

          8  name of Scooterbugs.  It's a multi-million dollar

          9  company.  They're going to be putting the bikes into

         10  over 123 amusement parks nationwide. They're

         11  operating the bikes in Boston, Cincinnati, Chicago,

         12  and Philadelphia.  They want to see the success of

         13  the bike, or they want the bike to be permitted to

         14  operate in New York City.

         15                 People want to see the Empire State

         16  Building, the Statue of Liberty.  Part of the

         17  itinerary, when tourists come, is they want to ride

         18  the bike.  They want to be part of the New York

         19  landscape, and be on the bike.

         20                 I have a website, partybike.com.  And

         21  what I'd like --  what this could do is benefit the

         22  City.  I'm creating jobs, tax revenue.  And it's

         23  just part of the New York City landscape.

         24                 And I'm requesting that  --  don't

         25  ban the bike. Don't ban the party bike or conference
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          2  bike, or whatever name it should be.  And that

          3  should be it.  That's it.  I'm nervous.

          4                 If you have any questions  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry.  It's

          6  been a long day.  My staff is trying to get me to do

          7  some other work.

          8                 Were you done, or were you asking a

          9  question?

         10                 MR. DOMITE: No.  Basically, that's

         11  it, you know.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  All right.

         13    I want to thank you all for coming.  And I didn't

         14  have any specific questions for you at this

         15  particular time.  But we will be getting back to

         16  you.  Again, I don't know if you were here when the

         17  Commissioner testified, the two Commissioners, and

         18  the reaction from the Council Members.  I can just

         19  tell you that the party bike issue is a very

         20  difficult one at this point, from both the Member's

         21  perspective and the City's perspective.  So you have

         22  a lot of work to do.  Thank you.  Thank you all for

         23  coming.

         24                 Our next panel is Noah Budnick.  He

         25  left.  Okay. Christian Farrell.  Gregg Zukowski.
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          2  And Jonathan Gerballe.  He already testified.  Okay.

          3    Then we'll have Robin Morris, from Manhattan

          4  Rickshaw.  Did Robin testify also?  Pardon me.  She

          5  had to leave?  Okay.  I'm sorry this is going long,

          6  but everybody  -- Konstantinos Terczis  --  You can

          7  start.

          8                 MR. FARRELL: My name is Christian

          9  Farrell, and I've owned my own pedicab a couple of

         10  years now.  I lease it now.  I used to drive.  I

         11  drove for three years.  And my company's name is

         12  Tour the Apple Pedicabs and Bicycles. I'm a Board

         13  member of the New York Pedicab Owners Association.

         14  And I had the job of doing a census  --  I

         15  voluntarily made my own census in December of 2003.

         16  And I came up with 219 pedicabs.  I just completed

         17  another one, and I found out there's over 400

         18  pedicabs, if you count the ones  -- there's a couple

         19  that have been purchased and haven't arrived yet,

         20  but there's over 400 pedicabs in New York.  There's

         21  more being expected very soon.

         22                 And over 50 of those are owned by

         23  independent people like me that own one pedicab.

         24  And so when I've done a  --  and also, collected

         25  over 100  --  I was one of the founders of this
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          2  Google group, where there's over 150 pedicabers, we

          3  share information online.

          4                 So during those three times when I

          5  was doing the census, when I did the Google group, I

          6  got to meet a lot of the owners, and I met a lot of

          7  the pedicab drivers.  And this job to them is like

          8   --  a lot of them are using this to really fulfill

          9  their dreams.  They're using it because it's

         10  flexible and they can be actors and pursue a job, a

         11  career that's meaningful, more meaningful to them.

         12  And so it's really beneficial to help them fulfill

         13  their dreams.

         14                 And other people, it really is their

         15  dream.  This is the opportunity of a lifetime to a

         16  lot of the pedicab owners.  They started the

         17  business.  A lot of these guys from Eastern Europe

         18  and Africa and stuff.  South America.  The money is

         19  worth a lot to them, and so this is  --  to take

         20  this away from them is, I think is  --  for them to

         21  ban us or to give the Commissioner of DOT and DCA

         22  the power to take us out of Midtown, or ban the

         23  numbers, because there's over 400 right now.  If

         24  they can ban the number and not include all of us in

         25  the pedicabs that are allowed in the City, or ban us
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          2  from Midtown, that can be detrimental to all the

          3  people that have  --  you know, I've gone thousands

          4  of miles on my pedicab.  And that's a lot of hard

          5  labor.  And I think we do deserve what we have

          6  accomplished so far.  And I'm requesting the Council

          7  to clearly consider about giving that power away to

          8  DCA Commissioners and the Parks Commissioners, all

          9  this power away to them.

         10                 And to really consider us, keep us

         11  close to your heart when you're thinking about this

         12  bill.  And my time is up, and I just thank you for

         13  your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next

         15  person.

         16                 MR. ZUKOWSKI: Thank you Council

         17  Member Comrie.  And thanks for sticking around and

         18  investing your time in this process. It's really

         19  crucial, because it's going to impact us for

         20  decades, potentially.  And thank you.

         21                 My name is Gregg Zukowski.  I own and

         22  operate Revolution Rickshaws.  I drive regularly on

         23  one of my cycle rickshaws, and I serve as secretary

         24  of the New York City Pedicab Owners Association.

         25                 Let's be frank here.  There are
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          2  interests in the City that want to see fossil fuel-

          3  free vehicles barred from our City streets.  These

          4  interests would like to see us either severely

          5  limited or banned outright, because they feel we

          6  pose a threat to their monopoly on fueling and

          7  operating the transport network in the City today.

          8                 Forces in New York City left us

          9  without new subway construction for almost 70 years.

         10    The Port Authority of New York/New Jersey was

         11  formed over 80 years ago, to build a rail link

         12  between Brooklyn and New Jersey.  Where is it?  The

         13  City is finally ready to move beyond 20th century

         14  thinking, or is it?

         15                 In an era of skyrocketing fossil fuel

         16  costs, expanding motor vehicle gridlock, and

         17  horrifying auto- related death rates, sensible

         18  people understand that fossil fuel- free transport

         19  is the only way back to a leaner and cleaner New

         20  York City.  That such transport is market based, and

         21  subsidy free in Manhattan today, in the form of

         22  pedicabs, is a wonder in itself.

         23                 As the pedicab industry expands to

         24  meet short- run transport needs of residents in

         25  Manhattan, and eventually in visitors and residents
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          2  of Brooklyn, Queens, the Bronx, and Staten Island,

          3  care must be taken to ensure that consumers are well

          4  informed and safe.  Our infrastructure keeps up with

          5  21st century demands.  Enforcement processes are

          6  effective and operators adhere to best practices.

          7                 Intro. 75 remains, by far, a superior

          8  piece of legislation to address current realities of

          9  the pedicab industry. It strikes a balance between

         10  regulation and market forces that will serve this

         11  City well going forward.

         12                 The proposed regulation from DCA is a

         13  Trojan Horse legislation that allows one man or

         14  woman to stuff the industry into a straight jacket

         15  at his or her discretion, among other disasters in

         16  waiting.

         17                 Which industry has DCA been

         18  consulting for this proposal?  It certainly was not

         19  ours.  This proposal is a ban bill disguised as a

         20  regulation bill.  Please support the City Council's

         21  bill, Introduction 75.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next

         23  person.

         24                 MR. TERCZIS: Yes.  My name is Gus

         25  Terczis.  I'm a union representative organizer, and
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          2  know some technicians.  I like the idea with the

          3  pedicabs who is new idea of course, but I want to

          4  help.  Also the industry but from other side, we

          5  have members, disabled veterans, who interested to

          6  join this business.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry sir,

          8  we're here on pedicabs today, and we got a lot of

          9  people that need to still testify.  And it's not

         10  about the vendors today.

         11                 MR. TEREZIS: I'm not making about

         12  vendors.  I'm here about pedicab.  My union

         13  representative with vendors is on the one side and

         14  the pedicabs another side.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         16                 MR. TEREZIS: And mostly I represent

         17  the veterans, disabled, who are in this to get on

         18  the   --  see the design, to give a permit or place

         19  our whatever and that pedicabs  -- the vendors want

         20  to have an exception.  I give you a letter before to

         21  accept the veterans same doing for any kind vendors.

         22  The veterans have an exception in the City law about

         23  limits, and limitation.  My members want to have

         24  some exception about that.  Because we have members

         25  who they income they has is not enough.  They need
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          2  something extra money. And I have this my union

          3  supported idea, because I cover my proposal from the

          4  federal and state law about the motorized vehicle.

          5  The federal law permitted 750 watts as human

          6  assistance, more.  Any vehicle who  is a human

          7  assistance they has the right to 750 watts more by

          8  order from the federal motor vehicle.  And 700 from

          9  New York and City  --  State and City law.

         10                 I support the idea.  My union support

         11  the idea for 700 watts motorized who is permitted by

         12  law, to move in those vehicles.

         13                 Also, I support the four wheels,

         14  because on the testifies my technician doing, those

         15  kind of vehicles is too much safety.  I come to your

         16  legislative ideas and I bring all the

         17  recommendation.  This is a more safety because is a

         18  too many things I don't want to explain now, can

         19  make more safety the four wheels. So I don't

         20  disagree with the  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What's the

         22  wheelbase on that?

         23                 MR. TERCZIS: I disagree with the

         24  other Commissioner who only proposed three wheels,

         25  because my veterans is, most of them disabled, and
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          2  they want drive more safely.

          3                 And also because on the technician to

          4  propose, the axle got to be flexible, like Mercedes

          5  or BMW, because that make me impossible to turn the

          6  vehicle.  Okay?

          7                 And it's too many things for your

          8  legislative people, and I offer a long time, already

          9  who knows me.  And I come with the union lawyers to

         10  make it workable that situation.  Thanks because you

         11  try to do something, but they need a lot of work.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I understand.  If

         13  you could give us a copy of your testimony, because

         14   --

         15                 MR. TERCZIS: Yes.  I give already a

         16  copy from my testimony.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You already gave

         18  us a copy?

         19                 MR. TERCZIS: Yes.  But I bring more.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, we need some

         21  more.

         22                 MR. TERCZIS: Yes, more lot of more.

         23  Okay.  Thank you, I don't want take more time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON. COMRIE: Thank you.

         25  Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. TERCZIS: He's owner and driver of

          3  four- wheel bikes.  He's a member of my union, and

          4  he want to do his testimony.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So this bike is

          6  on the road now?

          7                 MR. TERCZIS: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Did you sign a

          9   --  did you fill out a card, did he fill out  --

         10  your friend?  What's his name?

         11                 MR. TERCZIS: Prodromos Zuomis.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Astoria New York?

         13                 MR. ZUOMIS: Yes, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Thank you.

         15                 MR. TERCZIS: He's a member of my

         16  union.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And what union is

         18  it?

         19                 MR. TERCZIS: 223.  I give you  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Local 223.  Got

         21  it.

         22                 MR. TERCZIS: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Go right

         24  ahead sir.

         25                 MR. ZOUMIS: Okay.  My name is
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          2  Prodromos Zoumis.  I'm a journalist in my Greek

          3  community.  And a member of the New York Pedicabs,

          4  which is a nonprofit organization.  And also, I am

          5  the owner of a four- wheel pedicab.  I feel very

          6  safe, me and my passengers, when I'm driving my

          7  four- wheeled pedicab with a speed between 10 to 15

          8  miles per hour.  And it's impossible to stand the

          9  traffic with this bike, because I used to ride on

         10  the right lane. Also, it's impossible to turn over

         11  with this vehicle, because it is very stable.  And

         12  with a speed of 10 to 15 miles, I can't imagine what

         13  kind of accident somebody can create.

         14                 With a small legal motor of 750

         15  watts, which is one horsepower, I can drive from my

         16  garage close to Ditmus Boulevard to Manhattan

         17  through the Queensborough Bridge, through the bike

         18  road, and I can work in Greenwich Village, in Soho,

         19  in Little Italy, or in Chinatown.  And at the same

         20  day, after 10 to 12 hours work, I come back to

         21  Astoria, Queens, and my battery still have power,

         22  because I support the small motor pedaling.

         23                 The width of my bike is 53 inches,

         24  which is about the same size about with most of the

         25  other pedicabs, with the three wheels.  And also,
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          2  with this kind of seats, with this kind of seats,

          3  it's very safe for the driver to work the whole day,

          4  because there are many medical problems for the

          5  driver if somebody works eight,10, or 12 hours,

          6  there are problems in many medical problems,

          7  especially with the prostate, which is very

          8  dangerous, especially for the males.

          9                 And I think it's very good vehicle,

         10  and very safe. That's it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: That vehicle, is

         12  it solely motorized, or you pedal it?

         13                 MR. ZOUMIS: Of course, I'm pedaling.

         14  Because if I'm working by the motor, it's not the

         15  battery  --  it can't stay for a long time.  But

         16  because I am pedaling the whole day, I can still my

         17  power and it's saved when I have hills and where I

         18  am in the middle of a traffic, I can easily pass

         19  another vehicle or to change a line (sic).  That's

         20  why my opinion is that the small motor is a very

         21  good support for the traffic and   --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I got it.  I got

         23  it.  Thank you.

         24                 MR. TERCZIS: And this is legal.

         25  Completely --

                                                            174

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I got it.  I got

          3  it.  Thank you.

          4                 MR. TERCZIS: And it's not this law,

          5  the carriages is most of all the horse carriages.

          6  Okay?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Thank you.

          8    Thank you gentlemen.

          9                 Next panel is Robert Hart.  He left.

         10  Sorry. Michael Balmuth.  Mitchell Balmuth.  Mitchell

         11  Balmuth, 425 East 78th?  He left also.  Heidi

         12  Benedict.  Thank you Heidi.  Craig Molino.  Steve

         13  Stollman.  And Shoshannah Pearlman.  That will be

         14  our last panel.

         15                 I want to thank you again Heidi, for

         16  not testifying today.  I appreciate it.  Well, they

         17  left.  I'm sorry.  I have to apologize.  This

         18  hearing was not intended to go this long but  --

         19  it's been interesting, I have to say.

         20                 Whenever you're ready.

         21                 MR. MOLINO: Good evening, afternoon.

         22  Evening, afternoon.  Council Members and staff,

         23  thank you for your time today, and thank you for

         24  sticking it out.  My name is Craig Molino. I'm an

         25  independent pedicab owner/operator with five years
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          2  experience driving a pedicab on the streets of

          3  Manhattan.  And I'm an elected Board member of the

          4  Pedicab Owners Association of New York City.

          5                 I started in this business as a

          6  driver for George Bliss, the originator of pedicabs

          7  in New York City, and eventually worked for him both

          8  as a manager and as a trainer of new drivers at his

          9  company.

         10                 No doubt there is a need for

         11  regulations.  And we have been lobbying for this  --

         12  I know Mr. Bliss has since the inception.  As you

         13  have heard, there are many problems with this new

         14  bill, Intro. 331, being presented by the

         15  Administration, concerning the supposed regulations

         16  for the pedicab industry.  The reason I say

         17   "supposed" is that, as you have heard, most of

         18  these regulations will not so much regulate the

         19  industry as effectively destroy it.  The regulations

         20  are so unrealistic.

         21                 Since time is limited, I'm going to

         22  talk about just one of them, the posting of set

         23  rates.  This is unrealistic because each individual

         24  ride introduces so many variables.  These variable

         25  include, but are not limited to: The time of day or

                                                            176

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  night; the weather; the type of terrain being

          3  covered; or the relative weight of driver to

          4  passenger.  For example, I'm not going to charge two

          5  line backers from the New York Jets the same amount

          6  of price I charge an averages size woman and her

          7  daughter with a shopping bag from Macy's.

          8                 It is inconceivable that I would

          9  charge the same amount to pedal someone uphill for

         10  20 blocks in a thunderstorm as I would to pedal

         11  downhill for 20 blocks on a sunny day.  This is a

         12  human- powered, not gas powered machine.

         13                 Another aspect of pricing to be

         14  considered is the fact that passengers are free to

         15  negotiate the rates with the driver.  Disclosure is

         16  the key to any fair transaction.  I make sure that

         17  my passengers know the cost of each ride before we

         18  begin.

         19                 If anything, what should be posted as

         20  far as rates are concerned is something along the

         21  lines of, "Please as for a price quote before the

         22  start of your ride".

         23                 In conclusion, I'd like to say the

         24  last time I was here before the Council, I know I

         25  heard one of you say, "We don't want to regulate you
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          2  out of business".  And that seemed to be the general

          3  sentiment of the Council Members.  We all recognize

          4  the necessity to regulate this virgining and much

          5  needed industry. Over regulations, which is number

          6  331, will destroy our business.

          7                 Please remember what this Council has

          8  said in the past, and let the pedicab industry

          9  continue to thrive and grow with workable and

         10  reasonable regulations.  The reality is, the

         11  Administration's bill is a ban bill, disguised as a

         12  regulatory bill.

         13                 I urge you to support the original

         14  Intro. 75, the City Council bill, also known as the

         15  Gerson Bill.  Thank you very much for your time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Next person

         17  please.

         18                 MS. PEARLMAN: Thank you.  My name is

         19  Shoshanah Pearlman.  I've been driving a pedicab for

         20  about two and half years.  Thank you for your time

         21  and your consideration.

         22                 As the owner and the operator of a

         23  pedicab, I believe the bill proposed by the DCA to

         24  regulate pedicabs unacceptably limits my business,

         25  and the services that I can provide for my
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          2  passengers.

          3                 The proposal bans pedicabs from all

          4  City parks.  The pretext for this prohibition is

          5  that it is illegal to solicit surfaces on or near

          6  parks grounds.  One reason I gladly look forward to

          7  regulation and licensing of pedicabs and their

          8  drivers is that this law needs to be enforced.

          9                 That being said, even though I sell

         10  a hundred percent of my rides on the streets, and

         11  off parks property, I frequently go through Central

         12  Park with people.  People I have picked up

         13  elsewhere.  For a lot of locals, it's just the most

         14  direct and efficient way to get to the Upper

         15  Eastside.  For a lot of tourists, they want to

         16  experience the park in a unique, zero emission,

         17  zero- noise pollution way.  This demand translates

         18  into about 25 percent of my income each week,

         19  without a single ride sold on parks grounds

         20  themselves.

         21                 Pedicabs are bicycles.  And as such,

         22  have rights of travel.  My passengers deserve to

         23  arrive at their destination in the shortest time

         24  possible, if that is their goal.  Or, to experience

         25  all New York has to offer, if that is their goal.
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          2  There is no legal or sensible bases for curtailing

          3  this right.

          4                 The prohibition for going over bridge

          5  bike paths is even more senseless.  Pedicabs usually

          6  travel over the bridges only when we've been

          7  specifically requested to.  Our freedom to cross to

          8  the outer boroughs has been particularly valuable in

          9  emergencies, such as 911, the blackout of 2003, and

         10  the recent transit strike.

         11  While infrequent, these crises do occur, and will

         12  occur again.  No purpose is served by infringing on

         13  our right to travel, and thereby limiting our

         14  ability to make our contribution when the City is in

         15  need.

         16                 The ban on pedicabs in parks and on

         17  bridges is simply a thinly disguised mechanism to

         18  drive pedicab drivers out of business, by making our

         19  working conditions unprofitable and intolerable.  It

         20  confers no possible benefit on the City or its

         21  inhabitants, and visitors that could not be gained

         22  simply by enforcing existing laws.

         23                 I'd also like to address the

         24  prohibition in the DCA proposed bill on carrying

         25  more than two adult passengers.  My pedicab is
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          2  narrower than their utterly arbitrary 48 inch

          3  restriction, yet the seat is at least three times as

          4  wide as the seat I've been sitting in for the last

          5  three hours.  I frequently take three- person rides

          6  safely and comfortably, and that's probably 25 to 50

          7  percent of my income.  So I can really imagine no

          8  reason to prohibit this.  Except, once again, to

          9  make it harder for me to operate profitably and

         10  enjoyably.

         11                 Instead of considering the bill,

         12  which is really a disguised ban, please consider and

         13  support the Council's proposed Intro. 75.

         14                 MR. STOLLMAN: Mr. Comrie, since I'm

         15  the last speaker, I beg your indulgence for one

         16  extra minute if possible. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You know, I have

         18  a Town Hall Meeting in my district at six o'clock,

         19  all the way back in Queens, so I have another three

         20  hours of being polite.  So my wife is going to catch

         21  it this evening.

         22                 MR. STOLLMAN: My name is Steve

         23  Stollman.  I am a long- time advocate for public

         24  space and human- powered vehicles, especially high-

         25  tech, utilitarian, and multi- modal varieties.
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          2                 I think what we have here is new

          3  version of a very old proverb.  The difference is

          4  that, in this case, we are throwing out the baby

          5  instead of the bath water.  What is the bath water?

          6  It is nine times the national rate of asthma in

          7  children in some New York City neighborhoods.  It's

          8  three, four, five, maybe ten dollar a gallon gas

          9  that may wreck the entire economy.  It is slower

         10  than walking vehicular speeds on some of our major

         11  crosstown streets.  It is an ugly war, half way

         12  across the world being fought to protect our fuel

         13  supplies.  It is infinite tolerance for oversized

         14  vehicles operating at highway speeds across small

         15  City streets, who think that small and slow- moving

         16  bikes are getting in the way of their progress.  We

         17  are drowning in this toxic stew of bath water.

         18                 And what is the baby we are throwing

         19  away?  It is the dawning possibility that we may

         20  have the means available to us to enable us to

         21  change fundamentally the disastrous direction that

         22  our transportation policies have tended to send us.

         23  It is the rapidly growing awareness of the benefits

         24  of self reliance, and the healthful, functional

         25  exercise that human- powered propulsion provides.
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          2  It is an embrace of the kind of human scale objects

          3  and activity which provide a meaningful option to

          4  the over sized objects that have come to dominate

          5  urban space.  It is my baby too.             As a

          6  provider of the grub stake that first brought

          7  pedicabs to first brought pedicabs to New York City

          8  a decade ago, and the person who gave them shelter

          9  and helped nurture their ability to survive during

         10  their early years here, I have a special stake in

         11  their growth and good health.

         12                 Some of the steps being taken here

         13  today are valuable contributions to the continued

         14  vitality and utility of this industry, and I applaud

         15  you for taking them.  Some provisions of the

         16  proposed legislation would act to restrain the

         17  growth of this phenomenon unnecessarily, instead of

         18  just guiding it, and that, I feel, is a big mistake.

         19

         20                 While I have no financial stake in

         21  the pedicab industry today, for a good part of the

         22  past 25 years, I have been deeply involved in these

         23  matters, through two nonprofits which I formed,

         24  Lightwheels, and the International Conference on

         25  Appropriate Transportation.  The aim of these groups
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          2  has been to encourage the development of the kind of

          3  lightweight, utilitarian, and pleasure- giving

          4  vehicles that pedicabs and conference bikes point

          5  towards.

          6                 We are now at the earliest beginning

          7  stages of the design and development of these new

          8  families of such vehicles.  For passengers, freight,

          9  kids, dogs, whatever.  They will enhance our lives

         10  and our worlds.  The availability of small electric

         11  assist motors to help lighten the peddler's load,

         12  and provide some safety features, will open up a new

         13  range of urban friendly, weather protected, and

         14  creature comfortable devices to expand our

         15  transportation options.

         16                 Do we really want to stamp out this

         17  development before it can ever happen?  Because

         18  little vehicles don't fit on highway- type streets?

         19  The major mistakes being made here are concern.

         20  First, restricting the number of passengers and

         21  peddlers makes no sense at all.  Since an elongated

         22  vehicle could carry up to eight people.  Especially

         23  with sufficient help from them, and who is to say

         24  that they wouldn't get a good kick out helping get

         25  things going at a better clip, thanks to their
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          2  contributions?

          3                 The glories of the sedentary life is

          4  the most over sold fantasy in history.  Who thinks

          5  numb is the same as fun?

          6                 Giving any advantage to gasoline

          7  powered, multi- ton vehicles far more hazardous to

          8  our health, and likely to cause injurious accidents

          9  due to their size, weight, and momentum, over

         10  lighter, human- powered or electric assisted human-

         11  powered vehicles is illegal under the provisions of

         12  the Clean Air Act.  Shouldn't the City's federally-

         13  mandated goal of reducing automotive pollution alone

         14  require the encouragement of such vehicular

         15  development?  Not its banning and strict control.

         16  Why are we defending an oligopoly that has made the

         17  world a much more dangerous place, because of

         18  political manipulations and military intrusions?

         19                 A hundred years ago, when the Good

         20  Loads Movement organized by the League of American

         21  Wheelman and other bicyclists got the gravel and

         22  rock- strewn and dusty roads paved.  Shortly

         23  thereafter, automobiles began to take over that

         24  road.  The same bicyclists were marginalized into

         25  invisibility and remained virtually so today on most
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          2  of our roads.

          3                 A century later, here in the City I

          4  like to call Bike City, things are starting to

          5  change.  Many people are losing their fear of

          6  riding, especially in groups.  And properly

          7  encouraged, so much more could be happening.

          8                 Last page.  Human scale activity, be

          9  it a farmer's market, or a vehicle propelled by a

         10  group of people is the best, and maybe only valid

         11  response to a world dominated by out of scale

         12  activity and institutions.  Blaming congestion upon

         13  a tiny number of small vehicles, rather than the

         14  millions of behemoths out there, would be laughable

         15  if it were not so absurd.  If the intention is, as

         16  the legislation asserts, to prevent relatively slow

         17  moving vehicles from using our streets, are ordinary

         18  bikes next?

         19                 Many provisions of this legislation

         20  are, at least to me, mysterious as to their benefit

         21  or value, especially to the general public.  No

         22  information is provided to justify their inclusion

         23  in this plan.  This aspect alone suggests that this

         24  proposal needs to go all the way back to the

         25  conceptual drawing board before it is ready to be
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          2  seriously considered.

          3                 These issue, the 48 inch axles on

          4  road with eight foot, six inch trucks that are

          5  permitted.  So called unibody construction.  The

          6  limit of two adult passengers.  The need for a

          7  wearable ID.  Exclusion from parks or, for that

          8  matter, anywhere. Loss of the right to use bridge

          9  bike paths.  Limiting the number of peddlers.  The

         10  use of small electric assist motors.

         11                 Who benefits from stifling innovation

         12  and restraining the rapid potential growth of these

         13  new forms, at a time when the old paradigm is

         14  seemingly breaking down, under the strain of its

         15  excesses.

         16                 Since the impetus for this

         17  destructive approach to a large degree, is being

         18  propelled by the taxi industry, isn't this just

         19  another case of an archaic and badly designed system

         20  resisting any more evolved and appropriate steps

         21  being taken?

         22                 As in 1987, when it was the bike

         23  messengers, restrictions on commercial cycling are

         24  also being used as a cover to suppress the explosive

         25  growth of this vital activity.
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          2                 Health, environmental, and social

          3  justice organizations will spread the word among

          4  their communities, which are filled with cyclists

          5  unhappy about unsafe streets, and invisible

          6  infrastructure.  And this unfortunate legislation

          7  will generate plenty of justifiable criticism.

          8                 We must not permit even one step

          9  along this short sighted and unwise path.  This is a

         10  bike ban, pure and simple.  It is a discouragement

         11  of cycling program, masquerading as congestion based

         12  regulation, and it is tragically misdirected.  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I want to thank

         15  all of you for coming today, and sharing with us

         16  your opinions and concerns.  If I could get a copy

         17  of that, we would appreciate it.  For our records.

         18                 And clearly, we have miles to go

         19  before we finish this topic.  And we'll continue to

         20  talk.  I hope to meet with all aspects of the

         21  industry within the next few weeks.  So be looking

         22  out for our call.  Thank you.

         23                 With that, I'll declare the hearing

         24  closed.  And I want to thank everyone for attending.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 4:55 p.m.)
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